DIRECTORS' REPORT

PDear Members,

The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to present its 227 Annual Report together with
the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2018. .

Financial Performance

The highlights of ﬁnanmal performance of your Company (on standalone basis) for ﬁnam:lal year
ended on Malch 31, 2018 are as under:

Amount in Rs. and in Lakh)

Revenue from Operations : 3,322.73 2,325.43
Other Income - 141125 29337
Total Revenue ' 4,733.98 _ 2,618.80
Total Operating Ekpenditure excluding Interest, 2,509.72 - 2,389.32
Depreciation and Amortization

Finance Cost - - 555.26 : 599.51
Depreciation and Amortization expenses : 18.44 52.54
Total Expense - ) - 3,083.42 3,041.37
Profit / {Loss) before tax 1,650.56 -422.57
Tax Expense / (Credit) - 128.15 167.92
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year ' - 1,778.71 -254.64

As reported above, the total revenue during the financial year ended on March 31, 2018, stood at Rs.
33,22,73,322/- (Rupees Thirty-Three Crore Twenty-Two Lakh Seventy-Three Thousand Three
Hundred Twenty-Two Only) as compared to Rs. 23,25,43,446/- (Rupees Twenty-Three Crore
Twenty-Five Lakh Forty-Three Thousand Four Hundred Forty-Six Only) during the previous
financial year. The Company incurred a net profit of Rs. 17,78,70,100/- (Rupees Seventeen Crore
Seventy-Eight Lakh Seventy Thousand One Hundred Only) during the financial year under review as
compared to loss of Rs. 2,54,72,593/- (Rupees Two Crore Fifty-Four Lakh Seventy-Two Thousand
Five Hundred Ninety-Three Ouly) during the previous financial year.

Business and Operations

The Company is principally engaged in the business of promotion, construction, development and sale.
of integrated townships, residential and commercial multi storied buildings, houses, flats, shopping
malls, etc. :

Material Changes Affecting Financial Position

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company
which has occurred since the end of the financial year i.e. March 31, 2018.
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Although Corporate Restructuring of Emaar MGF Land Limited by way of Demerger has been
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal, New Dethi (‘“NCLT”) vide its orders dated January
8, 2018 and July 16, 2018, the details of which forms part of this report. Such Demerger will result in
transfer of an undertaking, being part of the construction and development business of Emaar MGF
Land Limited (“Demerged Company™) to MGF Developments Limited (“Resulting Company™), as
provided in the Demerger Scheme approved by NCLT.

Hence, the Demerger would lend greater focus on the operation of the Company’s businesses/ projects
and enable further growth and expansion of each business/project. The reorganization of these
businesses/ projects will also enable focused leadership that is required by these businesses/ projects
which in turn will allow the businesses to undertake future expansion strategies for overall benefits.
The Beard of Directors believe that the Demerger will have beneficial results for the shareholders,
creditors, customers, employees and all concerned stakeholders of the Company.

Corporate Restructuring plan in the form of Scheme of Demerger of the Emaar MGF Land
Limited

The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 11, 2016, have approved (subject
to approval of the shareholders and creditor} of the Company and relevant regulatory authorities),
demerger of the Company pursuant to a Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) under Section 391-394
of the Companies Act, 1956, hereinafter referred to as Scheme. The said Scheme has also been filed
with the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi on May 16, 2016.

The Scheme was thereafter approved by the Eguity Sharcholders, Secured Creditors (including
secured debenture holders) and Un-secured Creditors (including un-secured debenture holders) of the
Company and the Resulting Company.

In December 2016, in terms of the notification No. D.L.-33004/99 dated (7.12.2016, issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, all matters under Sections 391(2) & 394; 100 to 104 of the Companies
Act 1956, were transferred to the Principal Bench, National Company Law Tribunal, New Delhi
(‘NCLT”) for further proceedings, in accordance with law.

The Scheme provides for the demerger of an undertaking, being part of the construction and
development business of Emaar MGF Land Limited (“Demerged Company”) to MGF Developments
Limited (“Resulting Company”}, and consequent issue of shares by the Resulting Company to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company, except to the extent shares held by the Resulting Company
in the Demerged Company.

That the salient features of the Scheme of Arrangement are, inter alia, as follows:

a. fixed assets (including information technology equipment, furniture, fixture and fittings)
exclusively related to the Demerged Undertaking and capital expenditure on such fixed assets
incurred by the Demerged Company to be transferred to the Resulting Company, as per the
Scheme of Arrangement;

b. other assets, including current and non-current assets, investments, cash and bank balances
(including, for the purposes of clarification, bank accounts related thereto) related to the
projects to be transferred to the Resulting Company, as per the Scheme of Arrangement;

c. the legal and beneficial interests in the shares of companies as per the Scheme of Arrangement;
d. all development rights relating to, in respect of, or connected with the land and all development
rights in the projects comprised in the assets, as set out in the Scheme of Arrangement,

including all monies applied by the Demerged Company towards accounting for such rights.

e. the debts, duties, obligations and liabilities (including all future liabilities in relation to the



Demerged Undertaking, contingent liabilities/ claims) relatable to the Demerged Undertaking,
as per the Scheme of Arrangement, will be transferred to and vest in the Resulting Company.

f. all employees employed/engaged in the Demerged Undertaking as; on the date of approval of
the Scheme by the Hon’ble Court, including all their related benefits like gratuity, provident
fund, etc. and jail liabilities relating to such employees from the Appointed Date;

2. Upon the Scheme coming; into effect, the issued, subscribed and paid up share Capital of the
Demerged Company shall stand reduced from the; present Rs. 912,61,98,450 divided into
91,26,19,845 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up to Rs. 91,26,19,850 divided into
9,12,61,985 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up.

h, The Resulting Company will issue 9 (nine) Equity Share of Rs. 10 each, credited as fully paid-
up, to the shareholders of the Demerged Company for every 416 (four hundred sixteen) Equity
Shares of Rs. 10 each held in the Demerged Company.

i The aforesaid reduction in the subscribed, issued and paid up equity share capital of lhe
Demerged Company, shall be effected on a proportionate basis in “proportion to the shares
held, on the record date by the shareholders, such that the Demerged Company shall extinguish
9 (nine) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each held by each of its shareholders, for every 10 (ten) Equity
Shares of Rs 10 each held in the Demerged Company by such shareholders.

J With regard to 22,600 Redeemable Secured Non-Convertible Debentures of the face value of
Rs. 10,00,000 each issued by the Demerged Company, upon coming into effect of the Scheme,
the face value of each such debentures shall without farther act or deed be reduced by Rs.
3,07,876 (Rupees three hundred seven thousand eight hundred seventy six) such that the face
value I of each such debenture shall stand reduced to Rs. 6,92,124 (Rupees six hundred ninety
two thousand one hundred twenty four). Simultaneously and without any further act or deed,
and without payment of any further amount to the Resulting Company, the holders of the
aforesaid debentures shall be entitled to an equivalent number of fully paid debentures of the
face value of Rs. 3,07,876 (Rupees three hundred seven thousand eight hundred seventy six)
each by the Resulting Company. At the time of redemption, the liability in respect of the
debentures j)f the Demerged Company as aforesaid shall be Rs. 6,92,124 (Rupees six hundred
ninety two thousand one hundred twenty four) per debenture, and the liability in respect of the
debentures of the Resulting Company shall be Rs. 3,07,876 (Rupees three hundred seven
thousand eight hundred seventy six) per debenture.

k. Save as above, terms and conditions of other debentures (Secured and Un-secured) issued by
the Demerged Company will remain the same.

L Appointed Date for the Scheme of Arrangement is 30th September, 2015 and the Effective
Date is July 31, 2018.

The above are subject to approval of the court, with or without medifications.

Dividend

Considering the future needs of the Company for expansion and growth and to strengthen the
financial position of the Company, your directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial
year ended 3 1% March, 2018. '

Share Capital

During the year, there has been no change in the Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company and the
present Paid-Up Share Capital is Rs. 597,650,700/- (Rupees Fifty-Nine Crore Seventy-Six Lac Fifty



Thousand Seven Hundred), divided into 5,97,65,070 (Five Crore Ninety-Seven Lac Sixty-Five
Thousand Seventy) equity shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.

However, pursvant to the Demerger Scheme approved by NCLT, as on the Effective Date i.e. July 31,
2018, Emaar MGF Land Limited was required to transfer the Authorised Share Capital of Rs.
100,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Crores Only) to MGF Developments Limited.

In view of the same, the authorised share capital of the Company stands increased from the existing
Rs. 60,00,00,000/- (Rupees Sixty Crores Only) to Rs. 160,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Sixty
Crores Only) and the Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company shall be read as
under:

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 160,00,00,000/- (Rupees One Hundred Sixty
Crores Only) divided into 16,00,00,000 (Sixteen Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associates

The Company has 4 subsidiaries and 5 associate companies as on 31% March, 2018, We have, in
accordance with Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 prepared consolidated financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries, which form part of the Annual Report.

Further, the report on the performance and financial position of each of the subsidiaries and associates
and salient features of the financial statements in the prescribed Form AOC-1 is annexed to this report
as Annexure - 1.

The highlights of financial performance of your Company (on consolidated basis) for financial year
ended on March 31, 2018 are as under:

Amount in Rs. and in Lakh

Net Sales/Revenue from Operations 3,322.73 2,325.43
Other Income 3,692.62 354.49
Total Revenue 7,015.35 2,679.93
Total Operating Expenditure excluding Interest, Depreciation

and Amortization 2,591.88 2,409.41
Interest and Finance Cost 555.27 599.52
Depreciation and Amortization expenses 18.44 52.54
Amount capitalized under “Inveniory” 1.54 4,99
Total Expenses 3,167.14 3,066.49
Profit / {Loss) before tax 3,848.21 -386.53
Less: Tax Expense 128.15 167.92
Net Profit / (Loss) for the year 3.976.30 -218.61

Directors / Key Managerial Personnel

During the financial year, the following change was made in the Directorship/ Management of the

Company:




1. Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFQ) of the Company on
July 01, 2017.

However, after the financial year 2017-18, following changes took place in the Directorship/
Management of the Company:

Ms. Khushboo Goel was appointed as Additonal Director (in the capacity of Independent Director) on
12" July, 2018 and on the same date, Mr. Ratan Kumar Thakur resigned from the Drirectorship of the

Company.

Meetings of Board / Committees

Details of the meetings of Board / Committees of the Company, held during the financial year 2017-

18 are as under:

 Date of Meetings
5. No. . Audit Committee ‘| CSR Committee Nomination &
Board Meetings . . . Remuneration
Meetings Meetings .
- Committee

1 May 12, 2017 September 01, 2017 July 01, 2017 May 15, 2017
2 June 19, 2017 - - -
3 June 27, 2017 - - -
4 July £,2017 - - -
5 August 9, 2017 - - -
6 August 18, 2017 - - -
7 Aupust 29, 2017 - - -
8 September 1, 2017 - - -
9 September 19, 2017 - - -
10 September 20, 2017 - . _
11 October 5, 2017 - - -
12 November 7, 2017 - - -
i3 December I, 2017 - - _
14 December 26, 2017 - - -
i5 January 29, 2018 - - -
16 February 13, 2018 - - .
17 February 23, 2017 - - -
138 February 27, 2018 - - -
19 March 20, 2018 - - -

Total No. of :

Meetings 19 ' 1 1 1

The attendance
under:

status of the Directors in the abovementioned Board / Committee Meetings is as

| o * Number of Mectings - |
. Name of Directors N 1 Awdit ] CSR. Nomination &
" R - Board -} - . 1 . : N
| : _ "M'_e'é"tings- _-Comn}lttee BE Comnflttee_ . _R_e_mux_lf;fat_mn_
S R Meetings Meetings Committee
Mr. Shravan Gupta 4 - 1 -
Mors. Shilpa Gupta 16 - - -
Mr. Arun Mitter 19 1 1 1
Mr. Rakshit Jain 19 - - -
Ms. Pragati Sachdeva 19 1 1 1
Mr. Ratan Kumar Thakur 19 i - 1




Directors' Responsibility Statement

Your Directors state that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2018, the applicable
accounting standards read with requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
Jjudgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and of the profit of the Company for .
the year ended on that date; '

¢) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a "going concern’ basis,

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Declaration by Independent Direciors

All the Independent Directors of the Company have submitted the requisite declaration under Section
149(7) that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under section 149(6) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee

Pursuant to Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted a Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

S. No. Name of the Member Designation
1 Mr. Arun Mitter (Chairman) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
2 Ms. Pragati Sachdeva Independent Director
3 Ms. Khushboo Goel Independent Director

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee has also formulated and recommended to the Board, a
Nomination & Remuneration Policy for determining qualifications & positive attributes to identify a
person to become a Director / Independent Director / Key Managerial Person or who can be appointed
in senior management, for remuneration of Director / Key Managerial Person / other employees and
for the evaluation of their performance.

Further, your Company conducts effectiveness review of the Board as part of its efforts to evaluate,
identify improvements and thus enhance the effectiveness of the Board of Directors, its Committees,

and individual directors.

During the year, the Committee had approved the following appointments:



i.  Appointment of Mr. Vijay Kumar Sharma as the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the
Company w.e.f. July 01, 2017,

After the closure of the Financial Year 2017-18, the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting

held on July 12, 2018, on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee, have
appointed Ms. Khushboo Goel as an Additonal Director (in the capacity of Independent Director).

Audit Committee

Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Audit
Committee and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

S. No. Name of the Member Designation
1 Mr. Arun Mitter (Chairman) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
2 Ms. Pragati Sachdeva Independent Director
3 Ms. Khushboo Goel Independent Director

The roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are in terms of Section 177 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.

Auditors

1. Statutory Auditors

The Auditors, M/s. MLL. Mutneja & Co., Chartered Accountant, (Fim Regn. No. 001446N) were
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company for one year, i.e. FY 2017-18.

However, due to casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s M.L. Mutneja & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Registration No. 001446N), the Company in its meeting held on August 16, 2018, had
appointed M/s. Raj Jha & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn. No. 027344N) as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for Financial Year 2017-18, who held the office as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company until the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Now, M/s. Rupali Maria & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 033172N) have consented to be
appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for five years in respect to the financial year
2018-19 to 2022-23 and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits
specified under Section 141(3)(g) of the Act. Also, they have confirmed that they are not disqualified
to be appointed as statutory auditor in terms of the provisions of the proviso to Section 139(1),
Section 141(2) and Section 141(3) of the Act and the provisions of the Companies {Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014.

Thereafter, the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors recommend the appointment of M/s.
Rupali Maria & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 033172N) as Statutory Auditors of the Company
from the conclusion of the 22™ Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 27" Annual General
Meeting, to the sharcholders of the Company.



2. Cost Auditors

As per Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to have the audit of its cost
records conducted by a Cost Accountant in practice. In this connection, the Board of Directors of the
Company has on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, approved the appointment of M/s.
Sarat Mondal & Co., Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 24642), as Cost Auditors of the
Company for conducting Cost Audit of the Company for the financial year 2018-19.

3. Secretarial Auditor

As per Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 inter-alia requires to annex with its Board’s Report, a
Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in practice, in the prescribed form.

The Board had appointed M/s Jain Alok & Associates, Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors
to conduct Secretarial Audit for the financial year 2017-18 and their report is annexed to this Board
Report as Annexure —2.

The Secretarial Auditors in their Report have observed the followings;

* The Company has not incurred the whole balance expenditure on CSR activity relating to previous
financial years during the financial year 2017-18 although the provisions of Section 135 of the Act
was not applicable for the financial yvear 2017-18;

In this connection, please refer “Corporate Social Responsibility” of this report, where the
details of expenses incurred by the Company are mentioned.

=  The Company has not filed AOC-4 and MGT-7 for the financial year 2016-17 till the date of this
report. ‘

In this connection, the Company would like to submit that, inadvertently delayed in filing of
Forms AOC-4 and MGT-7 and the Company had filed the AOC-4 on 06/09/2018 and MGT-7 on
21/09/2018.

= The Company has not filed MGT-14 for providing guarantee as required under section 117 of the Act;

In this connection, the Board of Directors would like to submit that the guarantee is given as
security which was demanded by Director, Town & Country Planning (DTCP), Haryana. Hence
the Company has not given Guarantee/ Security against the loan of the Company, therefore the
Company has not contravened any provision of section 117 read with 179(3){f) of the Companies
Act, 2013.

o The Company has appointed the statutory auditor only for a period of one year in contravention of
Section 139(1) of the Act;

In this connection, the Company would like to submit that, M/s. M.L. Mutneja & Co., Chartered
Accountants (Registration No. 001446N) was appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company
for the FY 2017-18 as the said auditor was willing fo be appointed for one vear, hence the
Company appointed the auditors for the said period. Further, the said auditors have resigned from
the Company before completion of their tenure.

Statutory Auditors’ Report

There are no qualifications / reservations / adverse remarks or disclaimers made by the
statutory auditors in their report.



Extract of the Annual Return

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT 9 as per provisions of
Companies Act, 2013 and rules thereto is annexed to this report as Annexure - 3.

Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are given under Notes to the Accounts,

Deposits

During the year under review, the Company has not invited or accepted any deposits under
Companies Act, 2013,

Related Party Transactions

There have been no materially significant related party transactions between the Company and the
related parties, except for those disclosed in the financial statements. Further, during the financial year
2017-18, the Company had not entered into any new contract / arrangement with related parties, as
specified under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Internal Financial Controls
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,

During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation was observed. '

Corporate Social Responsibility

Although pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, the Company is not required to constitute the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee in the financial year 2017-18.

However, the Company has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (“CSR
Committee™) by the Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on November (7, 2014,
and the current composition of the Committee is as under:

S, No. Name of the Member Designation
1 Mr. Aran Mifter (Chairmai) Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
2 Mr. Shravan Gupta Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
3 Ms. Pragati Sachdeva Independent Director




Further, the Company was required to incur total amount of Rs. 58,22,035/- (Rupees Fifty-Eight Lakh
Twenty-Two Thousand Thirty-Five Only) in financial year 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17, out of
which Rs. 13,22,000/- (Rupees Thirteen Lakh Twenty-Two Thousand Only) were incurred by the
Company for CSR activities during in the aforesaid financial years, Hence the balance amount of Rs.
45,00,035/- (Rupees Forty-Five Lakh Thirty-Five Only) for various CSR activities of the Company, -
the details of expenses incurred on CSR activities is enclosed in the Annual Report on CSR and
marked as Annexure ~ 4.

However, as the Company had not made proper expenditure in FY 2014-15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 for
CSR activities of the Company as detailed mentioned below:

The Company was required to incur the balance amount of expenditure for aforesaid financial years
for CSR activities in the FY 2017-18 and 2018-19. Hence, the Company has incurred the following
expenditure for CSR activities in compliance of balance amount of expenditure which was to be
incurred in the said previous financial years.

Balance amount of expenditure to be incurred for CSR activities:
Amount (in Rs.)
FY 2014-15 11,60,695
FY 2015-16 18,55,678
FY 2016-17 14,83,662
Total 45,006,035

Less: Expenditure incurred on CSR activities in FY 2017-18

Khushii 5,50,000
Umeed 50,000
Balance amount to be incurred in FY 2018-19 39,00,035

Further, the Company has incurred the following expenditure for CSR activities in compliance of
balance amount of expenditure which was to be incurred in the said previous financial years:

Particulars Amount (in Rs.)
Total Balance amount of expenditure to be incurred in FY 2014- 39.00.035
15, 2015-16 and 2016-17 for CSR activities mE
Less: Expenditure incurred on CSR activities in (Till 3" September
2018)
Khushii 6,00,000
FCS Foundation 37,00,000
Balance amount to be incurred in 'Y 2018-19 Nil

In pursuant of compliance of the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
aforesaid previous financial years’ balance amount of unspent expenditure of CSR activities, the
Company had incurred the full amount as requisite for CSR activities in the said periods.

Although in the FY 2018-19, the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable on the Company as it does not meet the requirement of the said section in terms of Net

Worth; or Turnover; or Net Profit during any of the three preceding financial years.

However, the Company owes for the betterment of the society and therefore, the Company will -
continue its support to the society by economic or any other way in the near future.

Risk Management

The Company does not develop ény Risk Management policy as the elements of risk threatening the
Company’s existence are very minimal.



Yigil Mechanism

During the financial year, the Company does not fall under the class of companies mentioned in the
section 177(9) of the Companies act, 2013.

Significant & Material Orders Passed by the Regulators/ Courts/ Tribunals

During the year under review, there have been no significant and material orders passed by the
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations.

‘ Investor Education & Protection Fund

During the year under review, the Company was not liable to deposit any amount to the-Investor
Education and Protection Fund.

Conservation of Energy., Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Farnings & Qutgo

(A) Conservation of energy-

Since the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable.

(B) Technology absorption-

Since the Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity, the particulars are not
applicable

(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-

During the financial year, the Foreign Exchange used and earned by the Company is as under:

Particulars -~ . o0 onro 0 o March 31,2018 Y March 31,2017
Purchase of Material 0 0
Expenses on Foreign Travel Rs. 31,77,448.66 Rs. 22,11,000/-

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION/ PARTICULARS OF THE EMPLOYEES

The Company does not have any employees falling under Rule 5(2) of Companies (Appoinﬁnent and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, and hence this provision is not applicable.

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAI. HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

As a part of the policy for Prevention of Sexual Harassment in the organisation, the Company has in
place an Internal Complaints Committee for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual
harassment of women at work place in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition, and Redressal) Act, 2013 and relevant rules thereunder. No
complaints were received by the Committee during the period under review.
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FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2018

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration ) Rules, 2014.

REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN U74899DL1996PLC081965
ii Registration Date 16-Sep-96
iii Name of the Company M G F Devel ts Limited

Category/Sub-category of the Company

Company Limited by Shares

Address of the Registered office
& contact details

4/17-B, MGF House, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi 110002

Whether listed company

No

Name , Address & contact details of the Registrar &
Transfer Agent, if any.

NA

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more

of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SL No Name & Description of main products/services [NIC Code of the % to total turnover
Product /service of the company
1 Construction 41001 53.24
2 Renting and leasing of other machinery, equipment 77301 40.47
and tangible goods
ne.c.
3 Maintenance service activities 81300 6.29
I PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
SI No. NAME OF THE COMPANY ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ % OF | APPLICABLE
SUBSIDIARY/ |SHARES SECTION
ASSOCIATE HELD
1 [Kayo Developers Private Limited #/17-B, MGF House, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi ;0151 2007p 1170833 Subsidiary 100 |Section 2(87)
110002 of Companies
Act, 2013
g - - . . o Section 2(87)
2 Samishti Real Estate Private Limited 4/17-B, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi 110002 U45400DL2014PTC269821 Subsidiary 100 A
of Companies
Act, 2013
- i i Section 2(87
3 |crimson Holdings Private Limited 17-B, MGF House, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi U70100DL2010PTC204903 Subsidiary 75 | Section 2(87)
110002 of Companies
Act, 2013
. . . . Lo Section 2(87)
4 MGFD Ventures Private Limited 4/17-B, MGF House, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi - 11U74999DL2018PTC329933 Subsidiary 100 of Companies
Act, 2013
5 Discovery Holdings Private Limited MGF House, 17-B, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi U67110DL1998PTC093629 Associate 49.85 |Sec 2'(6? of
110002 Companies
Act, 2013
6 |VMR Promoters Private Limited #/17-B, MGF House, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi U70109DL2006PTC152110 Associate 50 |Sec2+(6) of
110002 Companies
Act, 2013
7 |sSP Aviation Limited MGF House, 17-B, Asaf Al Road, New Delhi U45201DL2003PLC118351 Associate | 26,02 |S€¢2-(6) of
110002 Companies
Act, 2013
8§ |MGF Promotions And Events Private Limited | /7" MGF House, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi U74999DL2011PTC221030 Associate s |Sec2-(6) of
110002 Companies
Act, 2013
9 |MGF Estates Management Private Limited #/17-B, MGF House, Asaf Ali Road, New Delhi U74140DL2011PTC221910 Associate so  [Sec2(6)of
110002 Companies

Act, 2013




[\ SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)

Category of
Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

% change
during the
vear

Demat

Physical

Total

% of
Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters -

(1) Indian -

40,74,047

40,74,047

6.81

40,74,047

40,74,047

a) Individual/HUF -

b) Central Govt.or
State Govt. R

c) Bodies Corporates -

5,38,46,273]

5,38,46,273

90.10

5,38,46,273]

5,38,46,273]

90.10

d) Bank/Fl -

e) Any other -

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1)

5,79,20,320

5,79,20,320

96.91

5,79,20,320

5,79,20,320

96.91

(2) Foreign

a) NRI- Individuals -

b) Other Individuals -

¢) Bodies Corp. -

d) Banks/FI -

e) Any other... -

SUB TOTAL (A) (2)

Tofal Shareholding of
Promoter

(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2)

5,79,20,320

5,79,20,320

96.91

- 5,79,20,320

5,79,20,320

96.91

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks/FlI

C) Central govt

d) State Govt.

e) Venture Capital Fund

f) Insurance Companies

g) FliS

h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

SUB TOTAL (B)(1):

(2) Non Institutions

a) Bodies corporates

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto Rs.1 lakh

ii) Individuals
shareholders holding
nominal share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others (specify)

1844750

1844750

3.09

1844750

1844750

3.09

SUB TOTAL (B)(2):

[Tofal Public
Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held by
Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

5,97,65,070

5,97.65,070

100.00

- 5,97,65,070

5,97.65,070

100.00




(i)

SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

sI Shareholders Name Shareholding at the Shareholding at the %
No. begginning of the year end of the year change
in share
holding
during
the year
No of shares % of total shares | % of shares No of shares % of total | % of shares
of the company pledged shares pledged
encumbered ofthe | encumbered
to total shares company | to total shares
1 [Mrs. Shilpa Gupta 31,75,398] 531 -| 31,75,398] 531 - -|
2 _[Mr. Shravan Gupta 8,98,649 1.50] - 8,98,649 1.50 - -
3 _[Discovery Estates Private Limited 2,39.53,191 40.08 - 2,39.53,191 40.08 - -
4 _|Vishnu Apartments Pvt Ltd 1.99.21,690| 33.33 - 1,99.21,690| 33.33 - -
5 [SSP Aviation Ltd 99.60,845) 16.67] -| 99.60,845) 16.67] - -|
6 |MGF Projects Private Limited 10,547, 0.017f - 10,547, 0.017] - -
5,79,20,320 96.91 - 5,79,20,320 96.91 . -
(i) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
Sl Share holding at the beginning of the Cumulative Share holding during
No. Year the year
No. of Shares % of total shares | No of shares | % of total shares of
of the the
1
2 NO CHANGE
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
Sl at the inning of the Ci during
No yeal the year
For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares % of total shares | No of shares | % of total shares of
of the the
1 _|Fairbridge Holdings Ltd 18,44,750) 3.09) 1844750 3.09)
(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
[sl.No Shareholding at the end of the year Cumulative Shareholding during
the year
For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares % of total shares | No of shares | % of total shares of
of the the
1 |Shravan Gupta
T the beginning of the year ,98,649] T.5] ,98,649] T.5|
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the|
year specifying the reasons for|
increase/decrease (e.g]
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.) A A
Atthe end of the year 8,98,649' 1.5| 8,98,649| 1.5|
2 [Shilpa Gupta
At the beginning of the year 31 ,75,398| 5.31 31,75,398] 5.31
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for|
increase/decrease (e.g|
allotment/fransfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc.) ~ ~
Af the end of the year 31,75.398 5.31 31,75,398] 5.31

*No other Director has held shares of the Company.




\ INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtness at the beginning of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount | 37.66,35,000 61,21,89,000 - 98.,88,24,000
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 37,66,35,000 61,21,89,000 - 98,88,24,000
Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year

Additions - 11,66,45,000 - 11,66,45,000
Reduction 3.82,63,000 - - 3.82,63,000
Net Change 3.82,63,000 11,66,45,000 - -
Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount 33,83,72,000 72,88,34,000 - 1,06,72,06,000
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 33,83,72,000 72,88,34,000 - 1,06,72,06,000

\ REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

SI.No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax. 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the Income
tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

2 #Stock option

w

Sweat Equity

4 Commission
- as% of profit
- others, specify

5 Others, please specify
(EPF Contribution)

Total (A)

Ceiling as per the Act




Remuneration to other directors:

SI.No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of the Directors

Total Amount

Independent Directors

(a) Fee for attending board
committee meetings

(b) Commission

(c ) Others, please specify|

Total (1)

Other Non Executive Directors

(a) Fee for attending
board committee meetings

(b) Commission

(c ) Others, please specify.

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2) |

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Cieling as per the Act.

REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Gross Salary

CEO

CFO Company
Secretary
(Nupur Jain)

Total

(a) Salary as per
provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b) Value of perquisites
u/s 17(2) of the Income _
Tax Act, 1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option -

w

Sweat Equity -

Commission -

- as% of profit -

- others, specify -

Others, please specify -

Total -




Ml

PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:- N.A.

Type Section of the Brief Details of Avuthority Appeall made if
Companies Description Penalty/ (RD/NCLT/Court) | any (give details)
Act Punishment/
Compounding
fees imnosed
A. COMPANY
Penalty _ _ _ _ _
Punishment _ _ _ _ -
Compounding _ _ _ _ _

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding




o o

~

©

Crimson Holdings Private
Limited

Kayo Developers Private
Limited

Samisthi Real Estate Private
Limited

MGFD Ventures Private
Limited

Discovery Holdings Private
Limited

VMR Promoters Private
Limited

SSP Aviation Limited

MGF Promotions & Events
Private Limited

MGF Estates Management
Private Limited

2(87)(ii)
2(87)(ii)
2(87)(ii)
2(87)(ii)

2(6)
2(6)
2(6)
2(6)
2(6)

Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Subsidiary
Associate
Associate
Associate

Associate

Associate

30,000
10,000
10,000
10,000
49,850
25,00,000
5,20,300
50,000
50,000

75%

100%
100%
100%

49.8%
50%

26..01%
50%

50%

4,00,000
1,00,000

1,00,000
1,00,00

0
0

o

0

0

0
0

-4,26,004
-32,363
-4,86,155.09
-16904
5,77,32,342

--55,08,356
-46,10,73,660

22,425,915

-39,072,307

AOC-1

26004
67,637
-3,86,155.09
83,096
5,87,32,342
44,491,644
-44,10,73,660
23,425,915

-38,072,307

0
34,91,95,637
10,35,02,074.91
98,096
94,045,210
7,64,30,567
42,48,87,193
26,295,891

77,984,263

0
34,91,28,000
10,38,88,230

15,000
3,53,12,868
3,19,38,923

86,59,60,853
2,869,976

115,579,478

0

0
9,96,08,450

0

0

0

2,742,401
0
0
3,396,000
19,44,67,719

-11800
0
-4,68,155.09
-16,904
4,78,628

-64,045
-99,285

2,440,243

507,465

0
12,74,227

1,05,90,000
0

628,362

14,05,930

Annexure-1

-11800 0

0 0
-4,68,155.09 0
-16,904 0
-795,599 0

-10,654,045 0

-99,285 0
1,811,881 0
-8,98,465 0




JAIN ALOK & ASSOCIATES

\ COMPANY SECRETARIES
C-5/24-25, Sector-6, Rohini

" Your Compliance Partner New Delhi-110085

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANICAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH, 2018
{Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

M/s. M G F Developments Limited
4/17-B, MGF House, Asaf Ali Road,
New Delhi-110002

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate governance practice by MGF Developments Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company™). Secrstarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating
the corpeorate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon, :

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers,
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in cur
opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended 31°' March, 2018, complied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

We report that, we have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31* March, 2018 according to the
provisions of:

{{} The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

(ii) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the
extent of foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, External Commercial Borrowings;

(iii)} Provisions of Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) were nof applicable to the Company during the financial year under
report.

(iv) The management has identified and confirmed the following iaws as applicable to the Company:

Employees Provident Fund & Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952; Employees’ State Insurance Act,
1948 and Schemes; Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and Rules; Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and Rules;
The Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 197C & the Rules; Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
and Rules; Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and Rules; Employment Exchanges (Compulsory
Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959; Workman's Compensation Act, 1923 and Rules;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meeting of Board of Directors (S5-1} and General Meetings
(88-2);

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following observations:

E mail: csalokjain@gmail.com: Ph: 9871494280




Jain Alok & Associates
Company Secretaries Page2 of3

»  The Company has appointed Mr. Rakshit Jain as CEQ on 14™ February, 2017, however the Company
has filed relevant form with ROC on 30% July, 2018;

» The Company has appointed Ms. Pragati Sachdeva and Mr. Ratan Kumar Thakur as Independent
Director w.e.f. 07" October, 2016, however the Company has filed relevant form with ROC 12" July,
2018;

= The Company has not incurred the whole balance expenditure on CSR activity relating to previous
financial years during the financial year 2017-18 although the provisions of Section 135 of the Act was
not applicable for the financial year 2017-18;

»  The Company has not filed AOC-4 and MGT-7 for the financial year 2016-17 till the date of this report;
*  The Company has not filed MGT-14 for providing guarantee as required under section 117 of the Act;

» The Company has filed CRA-2 for the appointment of cost auditor for the financial year 2017-18 and
Form CRA-4 for the cost audit report for the financial year 2016-17 with ROC with additional fees;

= The Company has appointed the statutory auditor only for a period of one year in coniravention of
Section 139(1) of the Act;

We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax laws by
the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review by the Statutory
Auditors and other designated professionals.

We {urther report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company s duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out,

- Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and on shorter notice with the consent of Directors, and a
system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views, if any, are captured and recorded
as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the
size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines,

Piace: New Delhi . No.:30369
Date: 04/09/2018 : C.P No.:148238

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure A' and forms an integral
part of this report.

E mail: csalokjain@gmail.com; Ph: 9871494280




Jain Alok & Associates
Company Secretaries Page 3 of 3

To

Annexure A

The Members
M/s. M G F Developments Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

LJ

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our
responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonabls
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of

Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of
laws, rules and regulations and happening of events ete.

. The compliance of the provisions of Corperate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis,

. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of

the efticacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Jain Alok & Associates
Company Secretaries

Place: New Delhi - ACS No.:30369
Date: 04/09/2018 C.P No.:14828

E mail: csalokjain@gmail.com; Ph: 8871494280




M.: 9953192128

RAJ JHA & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

R-194, 1st Floor, Vani Vihar, Uttam Nagar, New Delhi-110059
E-mail : caraj.jha@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of MGF Developments Limited

Report on the Standalene Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of MGF Developments Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income}, the statement of changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”} with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the standalone financial position, standatone financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also inciudes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls and ensuring their operating effectiveness and the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liguidate the Cempany or 1o cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the rules made
thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.




We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
standalone financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standafone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances., An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone financial statements.

We are also responsible to conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
the opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of the auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 1o the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”) issued by the Central
Gavernment of India in terms of sub-section {11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1", a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

{2} Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
T lief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;



k. in our opinion, proper bocks of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Batance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, statement
of changes in equity and statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of accounts.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2018, and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give our separate Report in “Annexure 27,

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its standalone financial
position;

{iilThe Company did not have any long-term coniracts including derivative contracts. Hence, the
question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise;

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Coempany.

For Raj Jha & Associates
Chartered Accountant

Firm Registrati @J\i&@@ 44N
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Raj Kumar Jha\\@f’e‘é‘s c
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{Proprietor)
Memb_grship No. 525552

Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of MGF Developments Limited on
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018] .

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management and as informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. in our opinien, the frequency of verification is reasonable having regard to
the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not hold immovable properties -as property, plant & équipment.
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (i){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

The Company does not hold inventories of stores, spare parts and raw materials. Inventory
comprises of only completed projects and projects in progress. According to the
information and explanations given to us, and also keeping in view the nature of the
operations of the Company, inventory of completed projects and projects in progress
cannot be physically verified.

(a) As informed, the Company has granted interest free unsecured loans to various parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the terms and conditions of
the loans are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect of such
loans has not been stiputated thus we are unable to comment whether the repayments
or receipts are regular and report amounts overdue for more than ninety days, if any,
as required under paragraph 3(iii){c) of the Order.

(c) in respect of the aforesaid loans, as the schedule of repayment of principal has not
been stipulated, we are unable to comment whether there is any overdue amount of
{oans granted to company and other parties listed in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185
and 186 of the Act,




(v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed there under.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of
products where the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there
under and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained.

{vii)

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and
any other material statutory dues applicable to it, however, there have been slight
delay in few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed dues in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax,
value added tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues
applicable to it, which were outstanding, at the year end for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable are as follows-

Nature of dues Amount %)
Income Tax 48,410,527

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues outstanding with
respect to, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, excise
duty on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount Period to which the
statute : amount relates
Finance Act, 1994 | income Tax 4,924,374 | F.Y. 2004-03
Finance Act, 1994 1 Income Tax 5,766,995 | F.Y. 2009-10
Finance Act, 1994 | Income Tax 2,085,850 | F.Y. 2010-11
Finance Act, 1994 | Income Tax 38,928,167 | F.Y. 2011-12
Finance Act, 1994 | Income Tax 87,127 | F.Y. 2012-13
Finance Act, 1994 | Income Tax 241,388 | F.Y. 2014-15
Finance Act, 1994 | Income Tax 218,330 | F.Y. 2015-16

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in_repayment of loans or borrowings to financial institution(s), bank(s), government(s) or




{x}

(xi)

(xii)

(xiti)

(xiv)

(xv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has utilized the money raised by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for’
which they were raised. Further, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial
public issue offer.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed of
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management.

According to the information and explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has
been paid/ provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company -
is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xif) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188 of Act, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the
year. '




{xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Raj Jha & Associates

Chartered Accountants

Proprietor
Membership No. 525552

Place: g‘\f\c’aé "u’}i”puﬁ

Date: e o
.,%@f?,;% bov 4, 2eilf




ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of MGF Developments Limited on the
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MGF Developments Limited
(“the Company™)} as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal controt over financtal reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internat control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of refiable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls aver financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls cperated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financiat reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles., A
cornpany's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or dispesition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control aver financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internat financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the [CAL.

For Raj Jha & Associates

Chartered Acco ja]ft"’w
5,

Firm Registra quN’ ﬁi 32

Ra] Kuinar ﬁg N D

(Proprietor) N\
0

Membership No. 525%15

Place: New Delhi

Date:  Septermnhes 4 datg



MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIZITED )
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

Particulars

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plant & eguipment
Other intangible assets
Investment in subsidiary
Financial assets
Investment
Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net}
Qther non current assets
Nan-current (tax) assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Investment
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
Other financiak assets
Other current assets

Total Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Non- Current Liabilites

Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Provisions

Current Liabilities
Financial tiabilities
Borrowings
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Gther current liabilities
Provisions
Current tax liabitities {net)

Total Equity & Liabilities
Summary of significant accounting policies

{Amount in Rupees lacs)

Note No As at As at As at
obe 0. March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

3 100.75 115.79 144.85
4 3.72 4,39 7.00
5 6.01 5,01 5.01
[ 4,336,112 4,357.17 3,417.48
7 ' 249,24 215.90 134,53
& 2,104.57 1,950.93 1,672.98
£ 127.07 47,56 46.93
10 294.18 253.62 144,62
7,221.66 6,950.37 5,673.40
11 12,163.71 12,073.64 10,865.13
12 2,409.41 34.02 -
13 630.28 952.12 2,549.78
14 1,482.73 3,857.31 564.85
15 45,42 190.18 117.39
16 40,328.58 37,638.71 35,010.52
17 5,343.64 5,249.46 4,896.74
62,403.77 59,695.44 54,004.41
69,625,43 66,945.81 59,577.81
16 5,976.51 5,976.51 3,287.08
19 25,554,31 23,778.24 14,352.77
3%,530.82 29,754,75 17,639.85
20 3,283.72 3,766.35 4,266.60
21 36.85 34,10 30.80
3,420.57 3,800.45 4,297.40
22 7,288.34 6,121.89 8,194.79
23 1,493.46 1,559.48 1,773.42
24 15,893.59 14,719.36 16,335.08
25 9,386.76 10,378.13 10,719.43
26 6.51 6.37 6.57
27 605.38 605,38 611.27
34,674.04 33,390.61 37,640.56
69,625.43 66,945.81 59,577.81

2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For Raj Jha & Associates

Chartered Accountants, ..o
Firm Registration

=l e
Raj Kuraehe | A

Proprietor
Membership Num

Place : New Delhi
Date : September 4, 2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

MGF Developments Limited
Romm »

Rakshit Jain
Director & CEQ
DIN : 00697288

-3 o} Q
1 O
Nupur Jain

Company Secretary
M.No. 36044

Place : New Delhi
Date ; September 4, 2018

M,»«”

Arun Mitter
Director
DIN : Q0022941

Vijay Kumar Sharma
CFO



MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount in Rupees lacs)

Note Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Income

Revenue from operations 28 3,322.73 2,325.43

QOther Income 29 1,411.25 293.37
Total income 4,733.98 2,618.80
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 30 1,828.34 (958.73)
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 3 157.28 -
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 32 (1,888.85) N
Employee benefit expense 33 343.86 211.41
Financial costs 34 555.26 599,51
Depreciation and amortization expense 35 18.44 52.54
Other expenses 36 2,069.09 3,136.64
Total expenses 3,083.42 3,041.37
Profit before tax 1,650.56 (422.57)
Tax expense: .
(1) Current tax 110.54 109.13
(2) Mat credit entitlement {86.35) -
(2) Deferred tax liability/ (Assets) {152.34) (277.05)
Profit for the year 1,778,71% {254.65)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Remeasurement of post employment benefit obiigations {3.94) 2.71)
- Income tax related to above item 1.30 0.50
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of income tax) (2.64) (1.81)
Total comprehensive income for the year 1,776,07 (256.46)
Earnings per equity share (in ¥} 37

face value per share ¥ 10 each (Previous year T 10 each}

-Basic earning per share 2.98 (0.43)
-Diluted earning per share 2.98 {0.43)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
for Raj Jha & AssocifﬁgLMM For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountak } ,ﬁﬁ%\\\ MGF Developments Limited
T o
! N

o s .
Firm Registratio, AN o e . \
Raj}dr}i'a‘?‘aha s Rakshit Jain _ fm;j
Proprietor - Director & CEO Director
Membership Number: 52 DIN ; 00607% : 00022941
i vz
P=di A )
Nubpur Jain O Vija umar Sharma
Company Secreta éz’ CFO
M.No. 36044
Place : New Dethi Place : New Delhi

Date : September 4, 2018 Date : September 4, 2018



MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2018

Cash flow from operating activities
Net loss before tax from continuing business
Net profit before tax from discontinued business

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization from continuing operations
Provision for doubtful receivabtes
Loss on restatement of mutual fund
Loss on Sale of Investments
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets
Interest Charges on Term Loans
Interest Charges on ICD
Interest Income
Profit on Sale of [nvestments
bividend Income

Operating profit before working capital changes
Mavement in assets and liabilities, net

Adjustments for (increase)/ decrease in operating assets:
Non-Current other financial assets
Gther non current assets
Inventories
Trade receivables
Other current financial assets
Other current assets

Adjustments for increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:

Non-current provisions

Trade payables

QOther current financial liabitities
Cther current liabilities

Current provisions

Cash generated frem/{used in) operating activities
Less: taxes paid, (net of refund and interest thereon)
Het cash generated from operating activities

Cash flow from investing activities
Investeent in subsidiary
Investment in others
Investment in mutual funds
Investment in fixed deposits
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Loans given to related parties (net of reatisation)
Loans given to others (net of realisation)
Dividend income
Interest received
Net cash {used in) investing activities

(Amount in Rupees lacs)

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

1,656.56 {422.57)
{3.94) (2.71)
18.44 52.54

{979.39} 985,78
(130.39} 0.05
0.00 3.72
7.52 0.00
476,70 525.13
64.85 64.85
(48.45) (177.30}
(242.39) (42.56})
{1.56) (37.78)
(834.67) 1,374.43
811.95 949.15
{6.63) (55.21)
6.84 {0.63)
{90.07) (1,208.51)
1,301.23 611.88
(2,584.53) {4,505.04)
(94.18) (352.72)
2.75 3.30
{66.02} (213.94)
1,131.50 (1,566.03}
(991.37) (341,30}
0.14 {0.20)
(1,390,34) (7,628.40)
(578.39) (6,679.25)
(151.09) (224.03)
(729.48) (6,903.28)
{1.00) 0.00
263.44 (900.85)
(2,245.00) {34.07)
119.56 (97.77)
(12.49) (20.87)
2.23 0.00
(838.94) 2,665.24
734,85 (791.69)
1.56 37.78
45,69 179.42
(1,930.10) 1,037.19

Continued to next page



Continued form previous page

Cash flow from financing activities

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Proceeds from issue of shares 0.00 2,689.43
Security premium received on issue of shares 0.00 9,681.94
Repayment of long-term borrowings (including current maturities) (339.90) (564.33)
Movement in current borrowings 1,166.45 (2,072.90)
Finance cost (541.55) (575.59}
Net cash generated/{used in) from financing activities 285.00 9,158.55
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,374.58) 3,292.46
Cash and cash equivalents
-Beginning of the year 3,857.31 564.85
-End of the year 1,482.73 3,857.31
Cash and bank balances as per Balance Sheet 1,482.73 3,857.31

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2)

i. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS-7 on "Cash Flow Statements” specified under
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, as appticable.

Far and on behalf of Board of Directors of
MGF Developments Limited

As per our report of even date
for Raj Jha & Associates .

Chartered Accountant . .
Firm Registration c%&

e
Raj‘}(trrha Jh Rakshit Jain
Proprietor Director & CEQ

Director
vOP
< Mé‘ DIN : 00022941

Vijay Rumar Sharma
CFO

DIN : 00607288

L
Qs

Membership Numb

NupurJain
Company Secretary
M.No. 36044
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Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date ; September 4, 2018 Date ; September 4, 2018




MGF Developments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(i)

(i)

(iti)

1. Reparting Entity

2A.

MGF Developments Limited {“the Company”) was incorporated on September 16, 1996 under the
Companies Act, 1956, The Company is principally engaged in the business of promotion, construction,
development and sale of integrated townships, residential and commercial multi-storied buildings,
houses, flats, shopping malls, hotels, IT parks, etc.

The accompanying financial statements reflect the results of the activities undertaken by the Company
during the year April 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018,

Basis of preparation.
Statement of compliance:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of
Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The Company’s financial statements up to and for the year ended March 31, 2017 were prepared in
accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, notified under Section 133 of the
Act and other relevant provisions of the Act (“Previous GAAP”).

As these are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards has been applied. An
explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported financial position,
financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 48 to the financial
statements.

The financial statement provides comparative information in respect of previous year. In addition, the
company presents balance sheet as at beginning of the previous year i.e. April 1, 2016, which is the
transition date of Ind AS.

Amounts for the year ended March 31, 2017 and as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016 were audited by
previous auditors - R Balachandran & Co.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on May 23,
2018,

The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the Company for the financial years
presented in the financial statements and are consistent with those used in the previous year.
Current and non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Act,

Functional and presentation currency




MGF Developments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 201 8

{iv)  Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following

items:

ltems Measurement basis

Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value of

defined benefit obligations

v) Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.

Judgements

Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effects on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2018,

(vi}  Measurement of fair value

A number of accounting policies and disclosures require measurement of fair value for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
ordinary transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
« In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to/ by the Company.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

m/g.@fm/l\::gm nt is directly or indirectly observable '

8 1»3318{ /aluation techniques for which the lowest level inp A dighificant to the fair value

unohservable gf
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MGF Developments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

2B. Significant accounting policies

m

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when its probability that the economic benefits will flow to the company and it can
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable net
of rebate and taxes. The company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each nature of the revenue
transaction as set out below.

Revenue from real estate projects

Revenue from real estate projects under development is computed on the percentage of completion
method. Revenue is recognised in the financial year in which the agreement to selt or application forms
(containing sale in terms of agreement (o sell) is executed, on the percentage of completion method
which is applied on a cumulative basis in each accounting year to the current estimate of contract
revenue and related project cost, once the conditions specified in ‘Guidance note on accounting for
Real Estate Transactions’ are satisfied.

The estimates of the saleable area and costs are reviewed periodically and effect of any changes in
such estimates is recognised in the period changes are determined. However, when the total project
cost is estimated to exceed total revenue from the project, the loss is recognised immediately.

Revenue from sale of land
Gain /loss from sale of undeveloped unsuitable land is recognised in the financial year in which transfer is
made by registration of sale deeds or otherwise in favour of the buyers.

Revenue from collaboration agreement

Revenue from Collaboration Agreements is recognised as and when services are rendered in accordance
with the terms of agreements entered with the collaborators, based on the percentage share of gross
revenue of collabarators.

Revenue from Joint Development Agreement (JDA) executed with landowners:

JDAs enter into with landowners for the exchange of land against consideration in the form of property
of development rights are treated as exchange of dissimilar goods and are accounted for at fair value.
The revenue arising out of the same is measured at the fair value of goods received. When the fair
value of the goods received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of
the goods given up.

income from compulsory acquisition of land

Income in respect of compulsory acquisition (both original and enhanced compensation) of tand by the
Government is recognised upon receipt of compensation order from the Government or Court at an
amount equivalent to gross amount received/receivable, net of the cost of the land acquired by the

Government.

Interest due on delayed payments and forfeiture income on cancelled units
Revenue is recognised as and when due to the extent certainty of payments realisation is established in
relation to such income,

Revenue from hospitality and leisure activities
is recognised as and when services are completely rendered a

K&r

d right to receive money has been
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MGF Developments Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(i)

Dividend Income
Revenue is recognised when the company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

Unbilled receivables
Unbilled receivables represent revenue recognised based on percentage of completion method as per
policy on Revenue over and above the amount due as per the payment plans agreed with the customers.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and egquipment are measured at cost net of recoverable taxes (wherever
applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties
and non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly
attributable cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2016, measured as per the Previous GAAP, and
use that carrying value as the deemed cost of such property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any
component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced.

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting
year in which they are incurred. :

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated
residual value over their usefut tife using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

by



MGF Developments Limited
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

(i)

MY

Particulars Useful lives (in years)
Tangible assets:

Furniture and Fixtures 10

Plant & Machinery 15

Office equipment 5

Yehicles 8-10

Leasehold improvements 60

Computer equipment -3

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of
useful lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets. Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from
the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard from property, plant and
equipment is provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and
equipment as the case may be.

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to
the asset will flow to the company and where its cost can be reliably measured,

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the
purchase price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended
use.

Other intangible assets including those acquired by the Company in a business combination are initially
measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumutated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in
the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as incurred.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2016, measured as per the Previous GAAP, and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of such intangible assets.

Amortisation

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives
ising.the straight-line methad and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of
ap -
s
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

: 3@ O\{eceivables are initially recognised wh
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The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

intangible assets: Useful lives (in years)
Trademark 10
Computer software 5

Amortisation method, usefut lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and
changes, if any, are accounted for prospectively.

Losses arising from the retirement of, and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and
recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication
exists, then the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together
into cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.

Goodwill arising from a business combination is atlocated to CGUs or groups of CGUs that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of a CGU {or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to setl. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment
loss recognised in respect of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
aliocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group
of CGUs) on a pro rata basis.

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset
over its remaining useful life.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributabie to acquisition of an asset which necessarily take a substantial

period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Financial instruments

i. Recognition and initial measurement

en they are originated. All other financial assets and

_finAngial liabilities are initially recognised when. the Company becomes a party to the contractual
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profit and ltoss. Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is
expensed in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

e amortised cost;
e Fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), or
e  Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

e the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by hoth collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCl (designated as
FVOCI - equity investment). This election is made on an investment by investment basis.

All financial assets not classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FYTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company
may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortised cost or at FVOCI or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets: Business model assessment

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is
held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided to management. The information considered includes:

s{ig-pad the operation of those policies in practice.
ralesy Z%; on earning contractual interest income,
e, matching

hhe duration of the financial assets to the
s or realising cash flows through the sale

ing a particular interest rate pr
of any related liabilities or expd
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e how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management,

« the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and how those risks are managed;

« how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair
value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

e the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such
sales and expectations about future sales activity

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are
not considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the
assets

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis are measured at FVYTPL,

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are salely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company
considers:

« contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash fiows;

. terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;
prepayment and extension features; and

. terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non- recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of
the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its
contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest
(which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Financial assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest

income and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

—-Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,

: iﬁgjﬁﬁ d as income in profit or loss unles
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cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCl and are not reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial liakitities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial lapility is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial Uabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and toss. Other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

iii. Offsetting

Financial assets and monetary liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts
and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

iv. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially atl of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or
in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet,
but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the
transferred assets are not derecognised.

Financial tiabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liabitity when its terms are modified and the cash flows
under the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on
the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

v. Impairment of financial instruments:
The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and
ancial assets measured at FYOCI- debt investments

snancial assets carried at amortised cost and
#irities at FYOCI are credit impajpg .MB&W hsset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more
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events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observablte data:

e significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

s a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 150 days or more;

s the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

e it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Expected credit loss:

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected
life of the instrument is tess than 12 months).

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonabte and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than agreed credit period.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

o the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by
the Company to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

e the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit period.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured
as the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the
Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive}.
Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying

generally the case when the Company

here is no realistic prospect of reét
' 4 of income that could generate sufficient
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/é»ﬂ‘fh@b? g-term benefits: Compensated absences

cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written
off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures
for recovery of amounts due.

Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefits:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc are recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The
liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligation in statement of financial position.

Long term employee benefits

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a
defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the
plan at a predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous
Provisions Act, 1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the
Government of India. The Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthty
contributions.

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods.

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity. Benefits payable to eligible
employees of the company with respect to gratuity is accounted for on the basis of an actuarial
valuation as at the balance sheet date, The plan provides for lump sum payments to vested employees
on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount equivalent to 15
days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of
service. The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and
adjusted for past service as at the balance sheet date through which the obligations are to be settled.

The resuitant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation is
recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive income.

The Company determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for the period by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net
interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resuiting change in benefit
that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment
is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses
on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settiement occurs.

o,
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Projected Unit Credit Method. done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date, Actuarial
gain and losses are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss
except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or toss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of
current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after
considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates {(and tax
laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date,

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set
off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis
or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation
purposes, Deferred tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits.
Deferred tax is not recagnised for;

- temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of
the transaction;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that
future taxable profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax asset onty to the extent that it has sufficient taxable temporary
differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets - unrecognised or recognised, are
reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised/ reduced to the extent that it is probable/ no
longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the lability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its

tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
he @amestax authority on the same

‘ tity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to
asis or their tax assets and liabilities will be real.
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Minimum alternate tax

Minimum Alternative Tax (‘MAT’) credit entitlement under the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 is
recognised as a deferred tax asset when it is probable that future economic benefit associated with it
in the form of adjustment of future income tax liabitity, will flow to the Company and the asset can be
measured reliably. MAT credit entitlement is set off to the extent allowed in the year in which the
Company becomes liable to pay income taxes at the enacted tax rates. MAT credit entitlement is
reviewed at each reporting date and is recognised to the extent that is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the probability of recognition of MAT credit entitlement.

Contingent Liability, Contingent Asset and Provisions

Contingent {iability

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed
only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Company.

Provisions

The Company creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that
probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is materiat, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognised as finance cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, other short-term, highty tiquid investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current financial
fiabilities in the balance sheet.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
The weighted average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for events
such as bonus issue, share split or consolidation of shares.

lating dituted earnings per share, the net profit_or loss for the year attributable to equity
rs and the weighted average number of £hafed dsistanding during the peried are adjusted
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converted into equity shares as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker.

In accordance with Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present segment
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company’s Management to
allocate resources to the segments and assess their performance,

Segment Earnings Before Interest, Tax and Depreciation (EBITDA) is used to measure performance as
management believes that such information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain
segments relative to other entities that operate within these industries. inter-segment pricing is
determined on an arm's length basis.

The operating segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of products/services. Company
deals in one business namely “Educational Research”.

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company’s ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker’ or CODMW
within the meaning of Ind AS 108. Refer Note 33 for segment information.




MGF DEYELOPMENTS LIMITED

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2018

A. Equity share capital

Balance as at April &1, 2016 3,287.08
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2016-17 2,689.43
Balance as at March 31, 2017 5,976.51
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2017-18 -

Balance as at March 31, 2018 5,976.51

B, Other equity

For the year ended March 31, 2018

(Amount in Rupees lacs)

Particulars Reserves & Surplus Remeasurem Total
Security General Peemed Retained ent of
premium reserve equity Earnings defined
Balance as at April 1, 20116 2,711.70 324.39 71.25 9,044.62 . 12,151.96
Ind AS transition adjustments (Refer note 48) - - - 2,200.82 - 2,200.82
Restated balance at the beginning of the 2,711,70 324.39 71.25 11,245.44 - 14,352.78
reporting year
Security premium on share fully paid during the 9,681.94 - - - - 9,681.94
year )
Profit for the year - - - (254.73) - (254.73)
Other comprehensive Income - . - - (1.82) (1.82}
Total Comprehensive Income - - - (254.73) {1.82) 9,425.39
Balance as at March 31, 2017 12,393.64 324,39 71.25 10,9%0.71 (1.82) 23,778.17
Profit for the year - - - 1,778.70 - 1,778.70
Other comprehensive Income - - - - (2.64} (2.64)
Total Comprehensive lncome - - - 1,778.70 (2.64) 1,776.06
Balance as at March 31, 2018 12,393.64 324,39 71.25 12,769.41 {4.46) 25,554,23

As per our report of even date

Proprietor
Membership Nu

Place: New Dethi
Date : September 4, 2018

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

MGF Developments Limited

' UM Ll

Rakshit Jain
Director & CEQ \\@\'

DIN : 00607288 Yy
yé«fif//{w«
Nupur-Jain
Company Secretary

M.No. 36044

Place: New Delhi
Date : September 4, 2018
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MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

5 Investment in subsidiary
{Amount in Rupees lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Unguoted, trade investment, at cost

Investmeant in subsidiaries

Crimpson Holdings Private Limited

30,000 {March 31 2017: 30,000, Aprit 1, 2016: 30,000} equity 3.00 3.00 3.00
shares of INR 10 each

Kayo Developers Private Limited

10,000 (March 31 2017: 10,000, April 1, 2016: 10,000) equity 1.01 1.01 1.01
shares of INR 10 each

Samisthi Real Estate Private Limited

10,000 {March 31 2017: 10,000, April 1, 2016: 10,000} equity 1.00 1.00 1.00
shares of INR 10 each

MGFD Ventures Private Limited

10,000 {March 31 2017: Nil, April 1, 2016: Nil} equity shares of 1.00 - -
INR 10 each

6.01 5.01 5.01

The aggregate book value of unquoted non current investment are as follows:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Aggregate book value of unguoted non current investment 6.01 5.01 5.01
The company has elected to measure all of its investments in subsidiary company at their previous GAAP carrying value.
{refer note 48)
There are no other significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income
and proceeds of disposal.

& Non current financials assets- investment
(Amount in Rupees lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Unquoted, trade investment, at cost

Investment in associate

Discovery Holdings Private Limited

49,850 (March 31 2017; 49,850, April 1, 2016: 49,850) equity 4,99 4.99 4,99
shares of INR 10 each

MGF Estates Management Private Limited

50,000 (March 31 2017; 50,000, April 1, 2016: 50,000) equity 5.00 5.00 5.00
shares of INR 10 each

MGF Promations & Events Private Limited

50,000 (March 31 2017: 50,000, April 1, 2016: 50,000) equity 5.00 5.00 5.00
shares of INR 10 each

SSP Aviation Limited

520,300 (March 31 2017: 520,300, Aprilt 1, 2016: 520,300} 52.14 52.14 52,14
equity shares of INR 10 each

VMR Promoters Private Limited

2,500,000 (March 31 2017: 2,500,000, April 1, 2016: 264.54 264.54 250.31
2,500,000) equity shares of INR 10 each

A 331.67 331.67 317.44

Investment in joint venture
48 /ggi hi Metro Mall Private Limited
b Ly

2,745.24 2,745.24 1,717.39
(B} 2,745.24 2,745.24 1,717.39




MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

Investment in other companies

Aryan Life Style Private Limited

640,000 (March 31 2017: 640,000, April 1, 2016: 640,000}
equity shares of INR 10 each

Discovery Estates Private Limited

500 (March 31 2017: 500, April 1, 2016: 500} equity shares of
INR 10 each

EMAAR MGF Education Private Limited

8,000 (March 31 2017; 8,000, April 1, 2016: 8,000) equity
shares of INR 10 each

EMAAR MGF Land Limited

434,318 (March 31 2017: 434,318, April 1, 2016: 434,318)
equity shares of INR 10 each

MGF Retail Services Private Limited

3,500 (March 31 2017: 3,500, April 1, 2016: 3,500) equity
shares of INR 10 each

Shanti Apparels Private Limited

440 (March 31 2017 440, April 1, 2016: 440) equity shares of
INR 10 each

Vishnu Appartments Private Limited

365,000 {March 31 2017; 365,000, April 1, 2016: 365,000}
equity shares of INR 10 each

©
Investment in others
In Paintings and Sculptures
(D)
(A+B+C+D}

The aggregate book value of unqueted non current investment are as follows:

Aggregate book value of unquoted non current investment

64.00 64.00 64.00
0.05 0.05 0.05
204.00 204.00 204.00
189,31 189.31 189.31
0.35 0.35 0.35
127.38 127.38 127.38
37.50 37.50 37.50
622.59 622,59 622,59
636.62 657.67 760.06
636.62 657.67 760,06
4,336,12 4,357,117 3,417.48
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
3,699.48 3,699.48 2,657.41

The company has elected to measure all of its investments in subsidiary company at their previous GAAP carrying value.

{refer note 48)

There are no other significant restrictions on the right of ownership, realisability of investments or the remittance of income

and proceeds of disposal.

Other non current financials assets
Particulars
Security Deposits

Fixed Deposits with maturity more than 12 months
interest Receivable

Deferred tax assets (net)

Particulars

(Amount in Rupees lacs)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
136.50 129.87 74.66
106.69 81.49 56.51
6.05 4.54 3.36
249.24 215.90 134.53
(Amount in Rupees lacs})
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
2,104.57 1,950.93 1,672.98
2,104,57 1,950.93 1,672,98




MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

9 MNon current assets

{Amount in Rupees lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at

parch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Financial guarantee receivable 37.86 41.29 46.93
Mat credit entittement 86.35 - -
Prepaid lease rent 2.86 6.27 -

127.97 47,56 46,93
10 Non-current (tax) assets
(Amount in Rupees {acs)

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Advance income tax {net of provision as at March 31, 2018 INR
536.04 lacs (March 31, 2017; INR 425.50 lacs, April 1, 2016:
INR 157 lacs)) 294.18 253.62 144.62

294.18 253.62 144,62
14 Inventories
(Amount in Rupees lacs)

Particulars As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Land at Kherki Daula 339.68 339.68 339.68

(A) 339.68 339.68 339.68
Construction Work in Progress (As taken Valued and
Certified by the Management}
Opening Balance 5,232.82 4,024.30 3,426.55
Add : Proportionate Cost of work done during the year 29.55 249,78 1,923.57
Less : Cost of construction charged to Profit & Loss Account (1,828.34) 958.73 {1,325.82)
(8) 3,434.03 5,232.81 4,024.30

Finished Stock (As taken Valued and Certified by the
Management)

a} Closing Inventory of Built-up shops 4,357 .48 4,357 .48 4,357.48
Add : Stock of Area of 59030.80 Sqft @ Rs. 2943.06 per sgftin 1,731.57 - -
Metropolis Mall transferred to Finished Stock from WIP on the
Comptetion of Project
Add: Purchase of Unit No. UG-005 from Hemand & Smriti 157.28 -
Gupta in Metropotis Malt-GGN

6,246.33 4,357.48 4,357.48

b} Investment Project - Wazirpur (DMRC Wazirpur) - - 65.18
Add : Additions additions during the year - -
Less; Amortisation - (38.80)

c) [nvestment Project - Qutab 2,143.67 2,143.67 2,143.67

(C) 8,390.00 6,501.15 6,501.15
(A+B+C) 12,163.71 12,073,64 10,865.13
12 Current financial investments
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

2,409.41 34,02 -

2,409.41 34,02 -




MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

13

14

15

16

Trade receivables

Particulars

Un-secured, considered good

Cutstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date
they are due for payment

Other receivables

tn-secured, considered doubtful
Less: Provision for doubtful debis
Total Trade Receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars

Balances with banks

On current accounts

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months
Chegues, drafts on hand
Cash on hand

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents
Particulars

Deposits with Maturity Period
of more than 3 months but upto 12 months

Other current financial assets
Particuiars

Inter-corporate Deposit Interest Free - related parties
Inter-corporate Deposit Interest Free - Dther Parties
Other Receivables- related parties

Other Receivables- others

interest Receivable

Security Deposits

Business Advances

Advances To Suppliers

Advances Given to Staff

17 Other current assets

Particulars

Advance Against Land
Booking Advance - Related Party
Imprest

{Amount in Rupees lacs)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
292.75 668.08 189.54
337.53 284.04 2,360.24
630.28 952.12 2,549.78
1,571.42 2,550.81 1,565.03
(1,571.42) {2,550.81) (1,565.03}
630.28 952,12 2,549.78
(Amount int Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
1,268.48 3,782.09 485,78
196.40 51.51 28.30
- 6.41 -
17.85 17.30 50.77
1,482.73 3,857.31 564.85
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
45,42 190.18 117.39
45.42 190.18 117.39
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
22,329.01 21,490.07 24,155.11
2,928.87 3,663.72 2,872.03
1,568.88 8,281.38 4,080.12
9,934.10 1,197.66 1,009.69
9.66 8.4 11.71
2,474.78 2,474,438 2,372.81
1,078.54 518.36 485.85
- 0.30 23.00
4.74 4,33 -
40,328.58 37,638.71 35,010.52
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
2,571.01 2,571.0t 2,169.35
2,630.00 2,630.00 2,630.00
- 0.10 0.30
3.41 6.76 -
20.93 23.42 52.88
104.55 - -
13.74 18.17 44.21
5,343.64 5,249.4¢6 4,896,74
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MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

19 Other equity
Securities premium account
Opening balance
Add: Security premium on share fully pafd during the year
Closing balance (A}
General reserve
Opening balance
Closing batance {B)
Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
(Opening balance
Add: profit for the year

Closing balance (C)

Other comprehensive income

Opening balance

Add: Remeasurement of post employment benefit
obligations
Closing balance (D)

Deemed capital contribution

Opening balance
Add/Less: Financial guarantee given/taken during the year

Closing balance (D)
Total other equity (A+B+C+D)

20 Non current borrowings

Secured

Financial {nstitutions

Amount disclosed under the head “other current financial
liabilities”

toan from HDFC Ltd. of Rs. 45 Crores

(Amount in Rupees lacs)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
12,393.64 2,711.70 2,711.70
- 9,681.94 -
12,393.64 12,393.64 2,711.70
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
324.39 324.39 324.39
324,39 324.39 324,39
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
10,990.78 11,245.43 11,245.43
1,778.71 {254,65) -
12,769.49 10,990.78 11,245,43
(Amount in Rupees lacs})
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
(1.82) - -
(2.64) {1.82) -
(4.46) (1.82)
(Amount in Rupees lacs}
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
71.25 71.25 71.25
71.25 71.25 71.25
25,554.31 23,778.24 14,352,77
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
3,763.39 4,103.29 4,667.62
(379.67) (336.94) (401.02)
3,383.72 3,766.35 4,266.60




MGF DEVELGPMENTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

2. The applicable rate of interest on the entire loan shall be variable and linked to HDFC’s Corporate Prime Lending Rate
{HDFC-CPLR) and shall always be 5.55 basis points lower than the prevailing HDF-CPLR. The HDFC-CPLR{at the time loan is
sanctioned) is 17.55% per annum and therefore, the applicable rate of interest on the toan sanctioned is 12.00% per annum.

3, This loan shall be repaid by way of 108 Equated Monthly Installments:107 (One Hundred and Seven) Equated Monthly
Instaliments (EMI) of INR 68.34 lacs each, w.e.f. February 2, 2016 followed by 108th EMI of INR 65.56 lacs at the end of
108th month, .

5. The loan is secured by:

{a) Assignment of lease rentals via escrow mechanism from the following companies

i, Shoppers Stop Limited (for both Metropotitan Mal, Gurgoean and Metropolitan Mall, Saket),
ii. Connaught Plaza Restaurants Private Limited,

iii. Bistro Hospitality Private Limited,

iv, PYR Limited,

v. Nath Motors Private Limited,

vi. Decon Lifestyle Private Limited,

And any future tenants replacing the aforementioned tenants.

{b} First and/or Extension of Equitable Mortgage of the related areas in sanction letters.
{c) Personal Guarantee of Mr. Shravan Gupta.

(d) And/ar any other security or equivalent or higher value as may be acceptable to HDFC.

21 Long term provisions
(Amount in Rupees facs)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Provision for gratuity 26.92 23.35 21.92
Provision for leave encashment 9.93 10.75 8.88
36.85 34.10 30.80
22 Current borrowings
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 1, 2016
Unsecured Loans from Related Parties
Directors 47.40 42,40 42.40
inter Corporate Deposit (Bearing Interest) 763.00 763.00 763.060
Inter Corporate Deposit (Interest Free) 1,685.24 449.69 640.89
Unsecured Loans from Other Parties
Qther Inter Corporate Deposit (Interest Free) 4,797.70 4,866.80 6,748.50
7,288.34 6,121.89 8,194.79
23 Trade payables
{Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Trade Payable for Services 110.56 118.37 175,11
Trade Payable Project 1,382.90 1,441.11 1,598.31
1,493.46 1,559.48 1,773.42




MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Motes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

24 Other current financial liability

{Amount in Rupees lacs)

25

26

27

Current maturities of Loans from Financial Institution

Interest accrued and due

Book Overdebts

Security Deposits from Customers
Security Deposits - Others

Due to Joint Ventures

Trade Payable for Capital Goods

Qther current liability

Booking Advances from Customers
Other Payable

Advances for CAM & Electricity - Vilas
Advance from tenants

Duties & Taxes

TDS

Service Tax/GST

WCT

Provident Fund/ESI

Current provisions

Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment

Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for tax (net of advance tax as at March 31, 2018
INR 423.62 lacs (March 31, 2017: INR 423,62 lacs, April 1,

2016: INR 580.49 lacs))
Total Short Term Provision

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
3179.67 336.94 401.02
14,39 14.39 -
928.31 28.64 £9.39
1,022.00 1,021.12 1,022.31
7,000.00 7,000.00 7,000.00
6,413.13 6,182.18 7,706.27
136.09 136.09 136.09
15,893.59 14,719.36 16,335.08
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
3,849.80 5,665.19 5,466.77
5,318.37 4,402.39 4,961.39
4,03 1.68 203.88
- - 3.39
75.1 36.51 33.44
136,33 16.94 49.63
- 254,32 .
3.12 1.10 0.93
9,386.76 10,378.13 10,719.43
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
4.74 4.1 4,45
1.77 2.26 2.12
6.51 6.37 6.57
{Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
605.38 605.38 611.27
605,38 605.38 611,27




MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements far the year ended March 31, 2018

28

29

Revenue from operations

a) Sales

b} Rent

¢} Other Operating Revenue:-
Electricity & Water Receipts
Maintenance Income
Transfer Charges

Other income

Interest Income

Profit on Sale of Investments

Reversal of expected credit loss
Dividend Income

Finance Income

fncome on restatement of mutuat fund
Miscellaneous Income

30 Cost of Materials Consumed

31

Cost of Material Consumed
Total Cost of material Consumed

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

32 (Increase} / Decrease in Inventories

Closing stock
- Finished goods

Opening stock
- Finished goods

(Amount in Rupees lacs)

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1,769.24 520.59
1,344.72 1,283.74
108.08 177.47
44,98 286.83
55.71 56.80
3,322.73 2,325.43
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
48.45 177.30
242.39 42.56
979.39 0.00
1.56 37.78
7.08 3.9
130.39 -
1.99 31.82
1,411.25 293,37
{(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1,828.34 (958.73)
1,828.34 {958.73)
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 20138 March 31, 2017
157.28 -
157.28 -
(Amount in Rupees (acs)
As at As at

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

8,390.00 6,501.15
8,390.00 6,501.15
6,501.15 6,501.15
6,501.15 6,501.15

{1,888.85)




MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

33 Employee benefit expenses
{Amount in Rupees lacs}

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salary & Other Atlowances 314.60 1972.95
Contribution to PF 19.33 12.07
Staff Welfare Expenses 9.93 6.39
343.86 211.41
34 Finance cost
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
interest Charges on Term Loans 476,70 525.13
Interest Charges on ICD 64.85 64.85
Finance cost 13.71 9.53
555.26 599.51
35 Depreciation & Amortisation
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Depreciation 17.77 49.93
Amortisation 0.67 2.61
18.44 52.54
36 Other expenses
{Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Power & Fuel 195.19 219.29
Rent 382.36 382.73
Repair & Maintenance Building 20.23 54.59
Repair & Maintenance Plant & Machinery 17.48 21.04
Bank Charges 6.66 3.24
Insurance Charges 2.56 1.82
Rates & Taxes 130.13 106.83
Compensation, Rebate & Discount 50.34 358.49
Legal & Professional Charges (refer note below) 852.41 412.84
Facility Management Services - 36.34
Security Expenses 24.65 123.10
Tours and Travelling 138.27 100.23
Provision for doubtful debts - 985.78
Loss on restatement of mutual fund 0.05
Loss on Sale of Investments - 3.72
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 7.52 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 241.29 326.55
2,069.09 3,136.64
Remuneration to auditors ( excluding goods and service tax)
(Amount in Rupees lacs)
As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Statutory audit 8.00 8.00
Tax audit 1.50 1.50
Total 9.50 9.50
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37 Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 on ‘Earnings per Share’

3

<o

Basic earning per share (a)/{b}
Diluted earning per share (a)/{b}

Nominal value per share

Profit attributable to equity shareholders

Fram continuing operations (a)

Weighted average number of shares

Weighted average number of equity shares for the year (b)

At present, the Company does not have any dilutive patential equity shares.

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments

Commitments;

Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

- to related party [Net of advances of INR 2,356.36 lacs (March 31, 20172 INR 2,356.36 lacs; April 1, 2016:

INR 2,356.36)}

Total capital commitments

Contingent liabifities:

a. Securities/ Performance guarantee provided to varicus gavernment authorities/others
b. Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts(refer note i}

Note (i) Details of claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt

service Tax and CENVAT
Income tax
Income tax
Income tax
Income tax
Income tax
income tax
income tax
income tax
Income tax
Income tax
Income tax
Income tax
[ncome tax
ncome tax
income tax
Income 1ax
Total

Amtount above includes;

Particulars

Section

143(1)
148
143(3)
2082)
22042)
153A
22042)
14343)
1))
143{1)(a)
143(1)(a)
143(3)
143(3)
1534
14303}
143(3}

Year pertaining
200490
2003-04
2004-05
2009-10
2009-10
200%-10
2010- 11
010- 11
2010- 11
2010- 1%
2014- 12
2012-13
W012-13
204314
201415
2014-15
2015-16

{Amount in Rupees lacs}

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2047

2.98 (0.43)
2.98 (0.43}
16.00 10,00
1,778.71 {254.65)
1,778.71 (254.65)

No of shares

Mo of shares

59,765,070 59,765,070

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
5,886.28 5,886.28 6,249.92
5,886,28 5,886.28 6,249.92

March 31, 2018

#arch 31, 2017

April 1, 2016

459,20
522.52

March 31, 2018

468.88
539.63

March 31, 2017

468.88
491.70

April 1, 2016

49.24
47.74
6.60
3.34
6.06
14.80

389.28
0.87
.41

2.18
522.52

82.83
49.24
55.9%
6.60
20.56
390,15
1.43
G.32
.83
2.65
11.95
539.64

82.83
1.43

55.91
6.60

20.56
7.13
400,09
1.43

491,72

The managemest is of the opinon that, based on jssues decided in the earifer year and the legal advice that the ultimate outcome of the tegal proceedings in respect to

tax matters, as given above, will not have material adverse effect to the financial position of the Company.

The management is of the opinion that, based on issues decided in the earlier year and the legal advice that the uitimate outcome of the legal proceedings in respect to

tax matters, as given above, wilt not have material adverse effect to the financial position of the Company.

Contingent assets:

The Company does not have any contingent assets as at March 31, 2018, March 31, 2017 and Aprit 1, 2016
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3% Employee benefits
The Company contributes te the foltowing post-employment defined benefit plans in India.

{i} Defined Contribution Plans:

The Company makes contributicns, determined as a specified percentage of employee sataries, in respect of qualifying employees towards provident fund and EDLI, which
are defined contributéon plans. The Company has no abligatians other than to make the specified contributions. The contributians are charged to the statement of prafit

and loss as they accrue.

Year ended Year anded
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Lantribution to provident fund 19.33 12.07

{ii) Defined Benefit Plan:

Gratuity

The Company operates a post-employment defined benefit plan for Gratuity. This plan entitles an employee to receive hatf month's salary for each year of completed
service at the time of retirement/exit.

The present vatue of ohiigation is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Methad, which recognize each periad of service as giving ris2 to
additional empioyee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at 31 March 2018, The present
value of the defined benefit ebligations and the selated current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method,

A, The faitowing tabte set out the status of the defined benefit obligation
tarch 31, 2018 Jarch 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Net defined benefit liabitity
(Assets)/Liability for Geatuity 31.66 27.46 26.37
Total employee benefit liabilities 31.66 17.46 26.37
Non-current
Current 16.92 23.35 21.92
4.74 4,11 4.43
B. Reconciation of the net defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconcitiation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit {asset) liability and its components:
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Defined benefit  Fair value of plan Met defined Defined benefit  Fair vaiue of plan Net defined
obligation assels benefit abligation assets benefit
{asset)/ Hability (asset)/ liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 27.46 - 27.46 26.37 - 26,37
included in profit or (oss
Current service cast 5.23 5.23 1.94 - 1.94
Interest cost {income) 2.02 1.0 3.7 - 3.27
7.25 7.25 §.21 5.1
Included in Gl
Remeasurements loss (gain}
- Tetal actuarial loss/(gain} on abligation 3.94 3.94 2.7 .71
3.94 3.94 2N .1
Other
Benefits paid {6.99} (6.99) (6.83) (6.83)
{6.9%) (6.99) (6.83) (6.8}
Balance at the end of the year 31.66 31.66 27.46 27.46
C. Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 20138 March 11, 2017
Current service cost 5.23 1.94
Interest cost 2.02 3.27
7.25 5.21
D, Pian assets
Plan assets comprises of the foltowing:
#arch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
Funds Managed by insurer - - -
On an annual basis, an asset-labitity matching study s done by the Company whereby the Company contributes the net increase in the actuarial liability to the plan
manager in order to manage the liability risk.
D.  Actuarfal assumptions

a. Economic assumptions
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The priscipal assumptions are the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on government bonds at the
accounting date with a term that matches that of liabilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, senicrity, promotion and other relevant factors en long
term basis. Yaluation asumptions are as fotlows which have been selected by the company.

March 31, 2018 Harch 31, 2047 Aprit 1, 2016
Discount rate 773 7.37% 7.89%
Expected rate of future satary increase 5.00% 6.00% 6.00%

The discount rate has been assumed at 7.73% (March 31, 2017: 7.37%, April 01, 2016: 7.89%} which is determined by reference to market yield at the balance sheet date
on government securities. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

b. Demographic assumpticns
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

i) Retirement age (years) 59.00 59.00 59.00

ii) Mortality rates inclusive of provision far disability 100% of 1ALM (2006 - 08}

iii) Ages Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal
- . Rate (%) Rate (X} Rate (%}

Upto 10 years 7 7 7

From 31 to 44 years z 2 2

Abaove 44 years 2 3 2

E. Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reperting date to oae of the relevant actiarial assumptians, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
henefit abligation by the amounts shown below.

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2047
[ncrease Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate {0.50% movement) {1.31) 1.41 (t.28) 1.02
Future salary growth (0.50% movernent)} 1.43 (1.34) .03 (t.40)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide am approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

Senstivities due te mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

Senstivities as to rate of inftation, rate of increase of penslons in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being
lump sum benefit on retirement,

Description of Risk Exposures;
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As sich company is exposed to various risks as foliaw -
A} Salary Increases- Actuat salary increases will increase the Plan’s liabitity, Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future vatuations will aiso increase the liability.

B} Investment Risk - f Plar: is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actuat investment returs on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date
can impact the liability.

€] Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liabHity.
D) Mortality & disability - Actuai deaths & disability cases proving tower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

£} Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can impact Flan's
tiability.

F. Expected maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2047 April 1, 2016
Duration of defined benefit obligation

Less than t year 4.74 411 4,45
Between 1-2 years 0.690 0.58 0.54
Between 2-5 years 1.83 1.70 1.60
Over 5 years 24.49 21.06 19,78
Total 31.66 27.45 26.37

Expected conteibutions to post-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2048 are INR 8,44 lacs.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 13.17 years {(March 31, 2017 13,15 years}.
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{iif) Other long-term employce benefits:

B.

The company provides for compensated absences to its employees. The employees can carey-forward 2 portion of the unutitised accrued compensated absences and
utilise it in future service periods or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employaes render the related service and are also not expected to be utitized whelly within twelve menths after the end
of such period, the benefit is classified as a loag-term employee benefit. During the year ended March 3t, 2018, the Company has incurred an expense on compensated
absences amounting to INR 9.45 lacs (previcus year INR 5.90 lacs). The Cempany determines the expense for compensated absences basis the actuarial valuation of plan
assets and the present value of the obligation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

The following table set out the status of the defined benefit obligation
larch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Net defined benefit ifability

{iability for earned leave 1171 13.01 10.9%
Total employee benefit tiabilities 1.7 13.01 10.99
Non-current 9.94 10.75 8.87
Cuerent .77 1.26 2.12

Reconcitiation of the net defined benefit liabikity
The fotlowing table shows a recenciliazion from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset} tiability and its compaonents:

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
befined benefit  Fair value of plan Net defined Defined benefit  Fair value of plan Net defined
obligation assets benefit obligation assets benefit
(asset)/ iiabiiity {asset)/ liability
Balance at the beginning of the year 13.00 . 13.00 10,99 - 10.99
tncluded in profit or loss
Current service cost 4.31 - 4.3 2.12 - 212
Interest cost {income) 0.96 - 0.96 0.81 - .81
- Total actuarial loss/{gain) on obligation 4.19 - 4.19 .97 - 2.97
9.46 - 9.46 5.90 - .93
Other
Benefits paid (10.75) - {10.75) (3.89) - (3.89)
(10,75} - {10.75} {3.89) - (3.89}
Balance at the end of the year i1.71 - 1.7t 13,00 - 10.03

Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit and less for the year

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current service cost 4.3 212
Interest cost G.96 0.81
Actuarial toss (gain) 4.19 .97
) 9.46 5,90

Actuarlal assumptions
a. Economic assumptlons
The principal assumptions ace the discount rate and salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yietds available on government bonds at the
accounting date with a term that matches that of labilities. Salary increase rate takes into account of inflation, senfority, promotion and other relevant factors ont long
term basis. Valuation aaumptions are as foltows which have been sefected by the company.

HMarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017
Biscount rate 7.73% 7.37% 7.89%
Expected rate of future salary increase : £.00% 6.00% 6.00%

The discount rate has been assumed at 7,73% {March 31, 2017: 7.37%, April 81, 2016: 7.89% } which is determined by reference to market yield at the balance sheet date
on government securities. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarat valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

b. Demographic asswnptions
March 31, 2048 March 31, 2017 Aprif 1, 2016

i) Retirement age (years} 5% 59 59

if) Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability 100% of JALM (2006 - 08)

Withdrawal Withdrawal Withdrawal
fiE) Ages Rate (%} Rate (¥} Rate (%)
Upte 30 years 7 7 7
From 31 te 44 years 2 i 2

Above 44 years 1 2 2
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Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuariat assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit abligation by the amounts shown below,

JMarch M, 2018 March 3¢, 2017
increase Becrease increase Decrease
Discount rate ((.50% mavement) (0.54) 0.59 {0.54) 0.61
Future satary growth (0.50% movement} 0.69 (0.55) 0.61 {0.55)

AMthough the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the
assumptions shown.

Senstivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calcutated.

Senstivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of peasions in payment, rate of increase of pensicns before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable being a
lump sum benefit on retirement.

Description of Risk Exposures;
Valuations are based on Certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is expased to varieus risks as tollow -
A) Satary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valuations wilt also increase the tiability.

B) nvestment Risk - I Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at the last valuation date
can impact the liabitity.

) Plscount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s tability.
D} Mortality & disability - Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

£} Withdrawals - Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations can fmpact Plan’s
Habitity.

Expectet! maturity analysis of the defined benefit plans in future years

Particulars March 31, 2048 March 31, 2017 April t, 2016
duraticn of defined benefit obligation

Less than 1 year 1.77 226 2.12
Between 1-2 years 0.25 0.27 0.22
Between 2-3 years 0.72 0.80 0.65
Over 5 years 8.96 9.68 8.60
Total i1.70 13,01 10.99

Expected contributions te post-emptoyment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2018 are INR 4.77 tacs.
The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 13.17 years {March 31, 2017: 13.15 years),

Disclosure as per Ind AS 108 on 'Operating segments’
segment information s presented in respect of the company's key operating segments. The operating segments are based on the company’s management and internal
reporting structure,

Operating Segments

The hoard of directars have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CCDM), since they are responsible for all major decision w.r.t. the preparation and
axecution of business plan, preparation of budget, planning, expansion, allfance, joint venture, merger and acquisition, and expansion of any facility. The Company’s
board reviews the results of “residential, commercial and retail real estate development.” on a quarterty basis, The company's board of directors uses Earning Before
Interest, Tax angl Depreciation {EBITDA) to assess the performance of the operating segments. Accordingly, there is onty one Reportabie Segment for the Campany which
is ‘residential, commerciat and retail real estate development.”, hence no specific disclosures have been made,

Entity wide disclosures

Information about products and services
Company deals in one business namely "provision of education and related services". Therefore product wise revenue disclosure is not applicable.

information about gecgraphical areas
Company aperates under single gecgraphic location, there are no separate reportabte geographicat segments.
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information about major customers {frem external customers)

The Company derives revenues from the following customers vhich amount to 30 per cent or more of an entity’s revenues;

Customer ) March 31, 2018 March 3%, 2017
Pradeep Jain 340.00 -
Nirmal Singh & Prem Kaur 346.82 -
Shoppers Stop Ltd 659.71 618.49
Vikram Chaudhary - 235.9H
Manarama Dewan - 288.42
Anit Jain - 376.84
Birnlesh Wadhwa - 239,47
Future Retail Ltd - 319.39
4t Leases

Operating leases
Tie Company is a lessee under an operating leases. The lease terms of premise range fram 1 to 5 years and accordingly are short term leases, with an option to renew the
lease after that period. Lease payments are renegotiated every five years to reflect market rentats. Expected future minimum commitments for nan-cancellable leases
are as fallows:
{Aracunt in T}
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

(i) Future minimum tease payments

Not later than one year 109.2% 104.08 528,44
Later than one year but not later than five year 94.84 204.12 204.12
Later than five year - . -
Total 204.13 308,20 732.56
» B . Year ended Year ended
(iij Amounts recognised in profit and loss account March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Lease expense- minimum lease payments 182,36 182.73

42 in terms of the clause 22 of chapter ¥ micro, smalk and Medium enterprises devetopment Act 2006 (MSMED act 2008}, the disclosure of payments due to any supplier as at
March 31, 2018 are as follows:

Particulars Harch 31, 2018 Harch 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any MSME supplier as at the end

of each accounting period included in
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises - -
Interest due on above - -

The amount of interest pald by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED ACT 2006 along with the - - -
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting period

The amaunt of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making payment {which have been paid - - -
but beyond the appointment day during the period} but without adding the interest specified under the

MSMED Act, 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting period - - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date u - -
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpase of disallowance

as a deductible under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.




MGF DEVELOPMENYS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

43 Deferred tax

A,

Ameunts recognised in profit or foss

Current tax

For the year
ended
31 March 2018

Far the year
ended
31 March 2017

Current year 110.54 109.13
Minimum Alternate Tax {86.35) 0,00
24.1% 109.13
Deferred tax
Change in recognised temporary differences (152.34) (277.05)
(152.34) (277.05)
Total tax cxpense {128.15) {167.92)
Amaounts recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year ended March 31, 2018 For the year ended March 31, 2017
Before tax Tax (expe_n se)/ Het of tax Pefore tax Tax (expe'n sey Net of tax
benefit benefit
Remeasurements of defined
Lenefit Habiity (3.94) 1.30 (2.64} @M 0.90 .81
(3.94} 1.30 (2.64) (2.71) 0.90 {1.81)
Recoencitlation of effective tax rate
For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 3¢, 2017
Rate Amount Rate Amaunt
Profit before tax 1,651 {423)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate 33.06% 546 33.06% (140)
Tax effect of:
On account af IND As adjustments - 283.43
On account of timing difference {692.78) 30.61
On account of permanent difference 5.63 2.50
On account of remeasurement of financial liabilities/ assets (41.48} {2.08}
On account of provision for expected credit loss - (325.93)
On account of special rate of income tax {7.18) -
On account of exempt income (0.52) (12.49)
On account of brought forward losses 62.45 {4.22)
33.06% {128) 31.06% {168)
tovement in temparary differences
As at As at

Defersred tax assets

Property, ptant and equipment

Provisions for employee benefits

Trade receivables

Qther non current financials assets- security deposits
Other current financials assets- advance to employees
Brought forward tosses

Sub- Total {a)

Deferred tax liabilities

Qther non current assets- financial guarantee receivable
Other current financiats assets- advance to employees
Processing charges

Financial guarantee receivable

$uh- Total (b}

Net deferred tax assets (a}-(b)

3t March 2017

Recognized in P&l

Recognized in OCI

3t March 2018

559.71 538.30 - 1,008.02
13,38 (0.34) (1.30) 14,34
843.37 (323.82) - 519,56
4,39 (2.19) . 2.20

0.22 {0.22) - -

556.35 (62,45} - 493,90
1,977.42 149,28 {1.30) 2,128.02
13.65 {114} - 12.52
- 1.48 - 1.48
8.54 {11n - 7.37
4,31 {2.23) . 2.07
26.50 {3.06) - 23.44
1,951 152 (1) 2,105
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Deferred tax assets

Praperty, plant and equipment

Previsions for employee benefits

Trade receivables

Other non current financials assets- security deposits
Other current financials assets- advance to employess
Brought forward losses

Sub- Totat (a)

Deferred tax liabilities

Other non curcent assets- financial guarantee receivable
Processing charges

Financial guarantee receivable

Sub- Total (b}

Net deferred tax assets (a)-(b)

Income tax recognised directly in equity

As

at

31 March 2016

Recognized in PEL  Recognized in OCH

As at
31 March 2017

Deemed capital contribution

Tax losses carried forward

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised expire as follows:

Expire

615,02 (55.30} - 55%.71
12,35 013 (0.90} 13.38
517.45 315.93 - 843.37
- 4.39 - 4,39
- 0.22 - 9.22
552.13 4,22 - 556,35
1,696.95 279,59 {0.90) 1,977.42
15.52 (1.86) - 13.65
8.45 4.09 - 8.54
. 4.31 - 4.3t
23.97 2.54 - 26,50
1,672,908 277.05 (0.90) 1,950.92
March 31, 2018 March: 31, 2017
Before tax Tax Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
March 31, 2018 Expiry date March 31, 2017 Expiry date
1,481.06 2023-24 £,669.94 2023-24
12.75 2025-26 12,75 2025-26

Hever expire

44 Corpurate Social Responsibility
The hoard of directors approved CSR Poticy of the Company at its meeting held on Nevember 7, 2044. In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Company was required to spend INR 45,00 lacs (March 31, 2017: INR 45.00 lacs; Aprit 1, 2016: INR 30.16 facs) on prescribed CSR activities, The Company is
yet to undertake (SR activities and in accordance with the guidance provided by the institute of Chartered Accountants of Indfa, no provision has been recorded in the

45

books of account towards such unspent expenditure.

Related Party Disclosure

The Disclosure as required by the Indian Accaunting Standard - 24 (Related Party Disclosure) are given below:-

(a) List of retated parties with whom transactions have taken place and relatfonships:

a} Holding Commpany
b) Subsidiary Company

¢} Associate Company

d} Joint Venture

&) Enterprises in which key management personnet and their relatives are able to
exercise significant influence,

Discovery Estates Pvi. Ltd.

Crimpson Haldings Private Limited

Kayo Developers Private Limited

Samisthi Real Estate Private Limited
MGFD Ventures Private Limited

Discovery Holdings Private Limited

MGF Fstates Management Private Limited
MGF Promotions & Eveats Private Limited
$5P Aviation Limited

VMR Promoters Peivate Limited

Ansal Properties & Infrastructure Limited
Morth Delhi Metro Matl Private Limited
MGF Projects Private Limited

MGF Housing And Infrastructure Private Limited

Metroplex Construction Private Limited
JGF Promoters Private Limited

MGF Infotech Private Limited

Emaar MGF Land Limited

Aryan Life Styte Private Limited

Emaar MGF Edutation Private Limited
Radiant Promoters Private Liméted
Yashasvi Bulldtech Private Limited

MGF Promotions And Events Private Limited

MGF Fstates Management Private Limited
Divine Buid Tech Private Limited
Pushpak Promoters Private Limited
Shailvi Fstates Private Limited

Bewilder Builders Private Limited

MGF Market Place Mall Management Private Limited
Janata Cinemas Properties And Finance Limited
YUpper [ndia Hire Purchase Companies Assoclation Limited

Hyline Medicenz Private Limited
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f) Enterprises in which holding/subsiduary are able to exercise significant
influence.

MGF Auto Sales Private Limited
Discovery Heldings Private Limited
Grosvenor Estates Private Limited
MGF Securities Private Limited
Cards Services India Private Limited
Gee Gee Holdings Private Limited
Hap Sales Private Limited
MGF Services Limited
india | ease Development Limited
Bahubali Services Limited
Technofab Engineering Limited
The Motor And General Finance Limited
Ram Prakash And Co Pyt Ltd
Vishnu Apartments Pvt. Ltd.
Jayabharat Credit Limited
Loam Realtors Private Limited
Cameo Realtors Private Limited
Alcove Realtors Private Limited
Spike Cenbuild Private Limited
Shanti Apparels Manufacturing Co Private Limited
Speckle Realtors Private Limited
Mamokar Fipvest Pvt. Ltd.
Tabco Real Estate Private Limited
SSP Buildcon Private Limited
Metear Propbuild Private Limited
Raisin Estate Private Limited
R Propbuild Private Limited
Samishti Real Estate Private Limited
Salar Promoters Private Limited
Amplify Devetopers Private Limited
Bounty Buitders & Developers Private Limited
Buildout Reat Estate Developers Private Limited
Companion Butlders Private Limited
Companion Estates Private Limited
Dedicated Buildcort Private Limited
Dexterous Buildcon Private Limited
Ethan Traders Private Limited
GOGN Hitls Development Private Limited
Golf Cousse Road Development Private Limited
Kingpin Realtors Private Limited
Liberate Builders & Pevelopers Private Limited
Meadows Development Private Limited
Mohati Residency Development Private Limited
Optimum Builders Private Limited
Practical Developers Private Limited
Practical Estates Private Limited
Practical Homes Private Limited
Profusion Real Fstate Private Limited
Prosperous Builders & Developers Private Limited
Sector 76 Development Private Limited
Sedate Realtors Private Limited
Sprout Tradecom Private Limited
Virtuous Builders Private Limited
Welfare Real Estate Developers Private Limited
Windfall Builders & Developers Private Limited
Zane Devcon Private Limited
Dua Buildtech Private Limited
Yog Buildtech Private Limited
Zoey Traders Private Limited
Abaya Apparels Pvt. Ltd.
Aparna Buildcon Pvt.Ltd,
Aryan Life Style Pvt. Ltd.
Blassom Conbuild Pvt.Ltd.
Chirayu Propbuild Pvt.Ltd.
Elaticn Reat Estate Pvt.Ltd.
Ethan Traders Pvt.Ltd.
Extol Buildcon Pvt.Ltd,
Initia Sotutions Pvt.Ltd.
Gutsy Builders Pvi.Ltd.
Pavni Devetopers Private Limited
tnvestment in Partnership - MGF Matt Management
Investment in Partnership (MGF Event Management}
Legistic Buildtech Pyt Ltd
Vairagi Projects Private Limited
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g) Key Management Personnel
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Chief Financial Officer (CFO}
Company Secretary

Relative of KMP

Relative of KMP

Relative of KMP

Relatives of KMP

Mankhav Projects Pyt.Ltd,

MGF Automobiles Ltd. (Sale of Shares}
MGF Housing & Infrastrze P Ltd
Sahayog Buildtech Private Limited
MGF Infotech Pvt Ltd

Sojanya Promoters Private Limited
HMGF Promoters Pyt Ltd

Mative Constructions Private Limited
Salar Promoters Pvt.Ltd.

Soumya Promoters Pvt.Ltd.

S5P Developers Pyt. Ltd.

The Vilas Conominium Association
MGF Vehicle Sales Private Limited
Sareen Estates Private Limited
Yashoda Promoters Pvt.Ltd.
Dexterity Buildtech Private Limited
Hanny Infrastructure Private Limited
Columbia Holdings Private Limited
Gyandarshni Exim Peivate Limited
Moonlight Continental Private Limited
Gadokhar Real Estate Private Limited
Karishma Buildtech Private Limited
Power Buildtech Private Limited
Bardeb Buildtech Private Limited
Valente Real Estate Private Limited
Zack Estates Pvt.Ltd.

Rakshit Jain
Arun Mitter
Shravan Gupta
Shilpa Gupta
Pragati Sachdeva
Khushboo Goet
Vijay Kumar Sharma
Nupar Jain
Siddharth Gupta
Rrahul Upadhyay
Sudhir Sareen
Siddharth Gupta
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MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

46.

Fair vatue measurement and financial instruments

Financial instruments - by category and fair values hierarchy

The follewing table shows the carrying amounts and fair value of financial assets and financial liabilties, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy.

. Ason 1 April 2016

Particulars

Careying value

Fair value measurement using

FYTPL Fyocl Amortised cost Total Lavel 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Non-current
Investments - 3,417.48 3,417.48
Cther financial assets - 134.53 134.53
Current
Trade receivables - 2,549.78! 2,549.78
Cash and cash equivalents - 564.85 564.85
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents - 117.39 117.39
Other financial assets - 35,010.52; 35,010.52
Total - 41,794.55 41,794.55
Financiai [Eabilities
Non-current
Borrowings - 4,266,60 4,266.60
Current
Borrewings - 8,194.79 8,194.79
Trade payables - 1,773.42 1,773.42
Other current finaacial liabilities - 16,335.08 16,335.08
Total v 30,569.89 30,569.89
i. Ason 1t March 2017
Particulars Carrying value Falr value measurement using
FYTPL FYOCI Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Non-current
Investments - 4,357.17 4,357.17
Other financial assets - 215.90 215.90
Current
Investments - 34.02 34.02
Trade receivables - 952.12 952.12
Cash and cash equivalents - 3,857.3% 3,857.31
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivatents - 190,18 90.18
Other financiat assets - 37,638.71 37,638.71
Total - 47,245.41 47,245.41
Financial liabilities
HNon-current
Borrowings - 3,766.35 3,766.35
Current
Borrowings . 6,121.99 6,121.89
Trade payables - 1,559.48 1,559.48
Other current financial Habitities - 14,719.36 $4,749.36
Total - 26,167.08 26,167.08.




MGF DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
Notes te the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

i§i. As on 31 March 2018

Particulars Carrying value Fair value measurament using

FYTPL Fvoc) Amortised cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets
Hon-current

investments - - 4,336.12 4,336.12 - - -
Other financial assets - - 249,24 249,24 - ~ -
Current

investments - - 2,409.41 2,409.41 . - -
Trade receivables - - 630.28 $30.28 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,482.73 1,482.73 - - -
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivaients - - 45,42 45,42, - - -
Cther financial assets - - 40,328.58 40,328.58 - - -
Total - - 49,481.78 49,481.78;

Financial Habilities
Nen-current

Borrowings - - 3,383.72 3,383.72 - - -
Current

Borrowings - - 7,188.34 7,288.34 - - -
Trade payables - - 1,493,46 4,493. 46 - B -
Other current financial liabitities - - 15,893.59 15,893.59 - . - -
Tutal - - 28,059.11 28,059.11

tevel 1: It includes {inancial instruments measured using quoted prices,
Level 2: The fair value of Hinancial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant iaputs required to fair value an instrument are ohsezvable, the instrument is included in tevel 2.

Level 3: If ane or more of the significant inputs is not based on ohservable market data, the inastrument is inclzded in level 3. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities included
in Leved 3 is determined in accerdance with genesally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and
dealer quotes of simifar instrements.

The Company's borrowings have been contracted at floating rates of interest. Accordingly, the carrying value of such borrowings (including interest accrued but not due} which
approximates fair value.

The carrying amounts of trade recelvables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets and Uabilities, approximates the fair values, due to their short-term
natuse. Fair value of non-current financial assets which includes bank deposits (due for maturity after twelve months from the reporting date) and security deposits is smiliar to the
carrying value as there is no significant differences betvreen careying value and fair vatue.

The fair value for security deposits were calculated based on discounted cash flows using a current tending rate, They are classified as level 3 fair vatues (a the fair value hierarchy
due to the inclusion of unobservable inputs including counterparty credit risk.

Valuation processes
The Management perferms the valuations of financial assets and Uabilities required for financial reporting purposes on a periodic basis, including level 3 fair values.

There are iio transfers between levet 1 and fevel 2 during the year, There are no financial assets/ liabilities measured at fair vatue/ amortised cost for which level 1 and level Z inputs
have been used. Accordingly, disclosures related to levet 1 and 2 inputs are not applicable.

b.  Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the foltowing risks arising from financial instruments:
= Credit risk

« Liquidity risk

= Market risk

Risk management framework

The Gompany's Board of Directars has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's Fisk management framewaork. The Board of Directors have authorised
senlor management to establish the processes and ensure controf over risks through the mechanism of properly defined framework in {ine with the businesses of the company.

The Company's risk management policies are established to Identify and analyse the risks faced by the Gompany, to set appropriate risks limits and controls, to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regutarly to reflect changes fn market conditions and the Company's activities.

‘The Company has policies covering specific areas, such as interost rate risk, foreign currency risk, other price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, and the use of derivative and non-
derivative financiat instruments. Compliance with policies and exposure limits is revievsed on a continuous basis.
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b. Financial risk szanagement {continued)
(i} Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the balance sheet

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, Z0t6

Investments 6,745.53 4,391,19 3,477.48
Trade receivables 620.28 552,12 2,549.78
Cash and cash equivatents 1,482.73 3,857.31 564,85
Bank balances other than Cash and Cash equivalents 45.42 i%0.18 117,39
Other financial asseis 40,577.82 37,854.6% 35,145.05

Credit risk is the risk of financiat loss te the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Company’s receivables from customers.

The Company's credit risk is primarily to the amaouat due from custemers, The Company maintains a defined credit policy and menitors the exposures to these credit risks
on an ongoing basis. Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generatly invests in deposits with scheduled cormmercial banks with high credit
ratings assigned by domestic credit rating agencies.

The maximum exposure t¢ the ¢redit risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivables. Trade receivables are unsecured and are derived from revenue earned
from customers primarity located in India. The Company dees monitor the economic enviorment in which it operates and the Company manages its Credit risk through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuesly monitoring <redit worthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of
business.

On adoptios of Ind AS 199, the Company uses expected credit loss modet to assess the impairment {oss or gain. The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that
represents its expected credit losses in respect of trade receivable. The management uses a simplified approachk (i.e. based on lifetime ECL) for the purpose of impairment
loss allowance, the company estimates amotints based on the business envirenment in which the Company eperates, and management considers that the trade receivables
are in default (credit impaired} when counterparty fails to make payments for receivable more than 180 days past due, However the Compary based upon historical
experience determine an impairment atlowance for foss on receivables,

The Company’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables are as follows:
Gross carrying amount

Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 1, 2018
1-90 days past due 43,74 435,29 2,358.14
90-180 days past due 408,96 8.65 0.03
180-270 days past due 10.19 101.02 2.05

270-360 days past due 173.41 0.95 -
more than 360 days past due 1,565.37 2,957.02 1,754,57
2,201.69 3,502,93 4,114.81

In case of payments due from related pariies there is no default as there is insignificant credit risk. This definition of defauit is determined by considering the business
environment In which entity operates and othe macro-economic factors. Further, the Company does not anticipate any material credit risk of any of its other receivables.

# The Company believes that the unimpaired amounts that are past dug by more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on historicat payment hehaviour and
analysis of customer credit risk.

Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables:

Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Balance at the begianing 2,550.81 1,565.03
Impairment loss recognized / (reversed) 979.39) 985.78

Amount written off - -
fafance at the end 1,571 2,551
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b. Financlal risk management {continued)
{ii) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its firancial Labilities that are settted by delivering
cask or another financial asset. The Company's appreach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when they fatt due, under both aormal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage te the Company’s reputation

The Company believes that its tiquidity position, including totai cash (including bank deposits under lien and excluding interest accrued but not due) of INR 1,482.72
lacs as at 31 March 2018 (3t March 2017: INR 3,857.31 lacs, 1 April 2016: INR 564,85 facs} and the anticipated future internally generated funds from cperations will
enable it to meet its future knewn obtigations in the ordinary course of business.

Prudent fiquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
credit facilities to meet obligations when due. The Company's palicy is to regularly monitor its liguidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash and funding from graup companges to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The Company’s liquidity management process as monitered by management, includes the following:
- Day to day funding, managed by monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requirements ¢an be met.

- Maintaining rolling forecasts of the Company’s Liquidity position on the basis of expected cash flaws.

Exposure ta liquity risk

The foftowing are the remaining contractual maturities of financiai liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest

accrued but pot due on borrewings.

As at 31 March 2018 Carrying amount Contractuat cash flows
Less than one |Between che year| More than five Total
year ta five years years
Non-current. borrewing 3,383.72 - 2,754.97 628.75 338172
Current borrowing 7,288.34 7,288.34 - 7,288.34
Trade payables 1,493.46 1,493.46 - 1,493.46
Curseat maturities of Leans from Financial Institution 379.67 37%.67 - 379.67
[nterest accrued and due 14.3% 14.39 - 14.3%
Book Overdebts 928.31 928.1 - 928.31
Security Deposits from Custemers 1,022.00 1,022.00 - 1,022.00
Security Deposits - Qthers 7,000.00 7,000.00 - 7,000.00
Due to Joint Ventures 6,413.12 6,413.13 - 6,413.13
Trade Payable for Capital Goods 136.09 136.09 - - 136.0%
Total 28,059.11 24,675,3% 2,754.97 628,75 28,059.11
As at 31 March 2017 Carrying amount Contractual cash flows
Less than one |Between one year| More than five Total
year to five years years
Non-current borrowing 3,766.35 - 2,444.90 1,321.45 3,766.35
Current borrowing 6,121.89 6,121.89 - - 6,121.89
Trade payables 1,559.48 1,55%.48 - 1,559.48
Current maturities of Leans from Financial [nstitution 336.94 336.94 . 336.94
Interest accrued and due 14.39 14.39 - 14.39
Baok Overdebts 28.64 28,44 - 28.64
Security Depasits from Customers 1,021.12 1,021.12 - 1,021.42
Security Deposits - Others 7,000.00 7,000.00 - 7,000.00
Due ta Joint Veatures 6,182,183 6,182.18 6,182,18
Trade Payable for Capital Goods 136.09 136.09 - - 136.09
Total 26,167.08 22,400.73 2,444,90 1,321.45 26,167.08
As at 31 Harch 2016 Carrykng amount Contractual cash flows
Less than one |Between one year] More than five Totat
year to five years years
Non-current borroving 4,266.60 - 2,258.67 2,007.92 4,266,59
Current borrowing 8,194.79 8,194.79 - . 8,194.79
Trade payables 1,773.42 1,773.42 1,773.42
Current maturities of Loans from Financial Institution 401.02 401.02 401.02
Baok Overdebts 69.39 69,39 69,39
Security Deposits from Customers 1,022.31 1,022.31 1,022.31
Security Deposits - Others 7,800.00 7,000.00 7,000.00
Due Lo Joint Ventures 7,706.27 7,706,217 7,706.27
Trade Payable for Capital Goods 136.09 136.09 - - 136.09
Total 30,56%.89 26,303.29 2,258.67 2,007.92 30,569,838
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B. Financial risk management

iii, Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financiat instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three
types of risk; interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, the Company mainly has exposure to two type of market risk namely: currency risk and
interest rate risk. The objective of market risk management s to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising
the return.

Other price risk

The company’s non-tisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future valuses of the investment securities.
The company manages the equity price risk through diversification and by placing limits on individual and total equity insteuments. Reports an the equity
portfolio are submitted to the company’s senior management on a regular basis. The company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity
investment decisions.

Since the entity's expasure to unlisted equity securities is limited to subsidiary/associate Company and it has opted to measure the same at cost accordingly
disclosure related to sensitivitty analysis has not been provided.
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B. Financial risk management (continued}
ifi, Market risk

Enterest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates, The Company’s main
interest rate risk arises from long-term and short term borrowings with variable interest rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company's interest rate risk arises majorly from the term loans and cash credit from banks carrying fleating rate of interest, These obligations expose the
Company’s cash flow to interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as reported to the management at the end of the
reporting pericod are as follows:

The company’s fixed rate borrowings are carried at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither the
carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate hecause of a change in market interest rates,

Variable-rate jnstruments As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Borrowing (Non current} 3,383.72 3,766.15 4,266.60
Current maturities of borrowings 179.67 136.94 401,02
Borrowing {current) 7,288.34 6,121.89 8,194.79
Total 11,051,73 10,225.18 12,862.41

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possibie change of 50 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) equity and proﬁt or toss by the
amounts shown betow. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency exchange rates, remain constant.

Particulars Profit or (loss) Equity, net of tax
50 bps increase 50 bps decrease 50 bps increase 50 bps decrease

Interest an term loans from banks
For the year ended 31 March 2018 (20.13) 20,13 {13.48} 13.48|
For the year ended 31 March 2017 (21.71) 21.71 {14.53) 14,53

47 Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital and afl other equity reserves attributable to the equity
holders of the Company.

Management assesses the Company's capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overall financing structure. The Company manages the capital
structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets,

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may return capital to shareholders, raise new debt or issue new shares.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the debt to capital ratio, which s calcutated as interest-bearing debts divided by total capital (equity attributable
to owners of the parent plus interest-bearing debts).

Particulars As at As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Borrowings 11,081.73 10,225.18 12,862.41
Less ; Cash and cash equivalent (1,482.7%) {3,857.21) _ £564.85)
Adjusted net debt (A) 9,56%.00 6,367.87 12,297.56
Tatal equity (B) 31,530.82 29,754.75 17,639.85
Adjusted net debt to adjusted equity ratio {A/B} 30.35% 21,40% 69.71%
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48 First-time Adoption of Ind AS

The company has prepared its first Financial Statements in accordance with ind AS for the year ended March 31, 2018, For periods up to and including the year
ended March 31, 2017, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Indian GAAP, including accounting standards notified under the
Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended). The effective date for Company's Ind AS Opening Balance Sheet is Aprit 1, 2016 (the date of
transition to Ind AS},

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year eaded March 31, 2018, the comparative
information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening [nd AS Balance Sheet at April 1,
2016 {the Company's date of transition). According to Ind AS 101, the first Ind AS Financial Statements must use recognition and measurement principles that
are based on standards and interpretations that are effective at March 31, 2018, the date of first-time preparation of Financial Statements according to Ind AS.
These accounting principtes and measurement principles must be applied retrospectively ta the date of transition to Ind AS and for alt periods presented within
the first Ind AS Financial Statements.

Any resutting differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities according to Ind AS 101 as of Aprit 1, 2016 compared with those presented in the
tndian GAAP Batance Sheet as of March 31, 2016, were recognized in equity under retained earnings within the Ind AS Balance Sheet.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set
aut in the fotlowing tables and notes.

A) Exemnption and exceptions availed

A,

Y

in the Ind AS Opening Batance Sheet as at Aprit 1, 2016, the carrying amounts of assets and liabitities from the Indian GAAP as at 31 March 2016 are generaity
recognized and measured according to Ind AS in effect as on March 31, 2018, For certain individual cases, however, Ind AS 10f provides for optionat
exemptions and mandatory exceptions to the general principles of retrospective application of Ind AS. The Company has used the following exemptions and
exceptions in preparing its ind AS Opening Balance Sheet:

Ind AS cptional exemptions

A.1.1 Property, ptant and equipment & Intangible assets

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for alt of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making
necessary adjustments for de-commissioning Liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered by Ind AS 38, Intangible Assets,
Accordingly, the company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipinent and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

A.1.2 Investments

Ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for all of its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and asscciates as
recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP. Accordingly, the company has elected to
measure all of its investments in subsidiary company at their previous GAAP carrying value,

A.2 Ind AS mandatory exceptions
A.2,1 Estimates

The Company’s estimates in accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting poticies), unless there is objective evidence that these estimates
were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at 1 Aprit 2016 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP, The Company made
astimates for following iters in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous GAAP:

+ Impairment of financiat assets based on expected credit loss model,

A2.7 Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires the company to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition. Further,
the standard permits measurement of fianncial assets accounted on amortised cost basis on fact and circumstances existing as at the date of transition, if
retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as at the date of transition,
Measurement of financial assets has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.
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A2.3 Dereognition of financial assets and liabilities
As per Ind AS 101 an entity should apply derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 prospectively for transaction occuring on or after the date of transition ta
Ind AS.

8) Reconciliation of equity as at April £, 2016 and as at March 31, 2017
{Amount-in Rupees facs)

April 1, 2016 March 31, 2017

Note Previous GAAP* | Adjustments Ind ASs Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind ASs
ASSETS
{1} Nen-current assets
(a) Property, plant and 144.85 - 144,85 115.79 - 115.79
equipment
{b) Other intangible 7.00 - 7.60 4,39 - 4,39
assets
{c)  Investment in .01 - 5.01 5.01 - 5.01
subsidiary
{d) Financial assets -
(i) Investment a 3,418.03 (0.55) 3,417.48 4,352.72 {0.55) 4,357.17
(ii) other financial b 134.53 - 134.53 229,17 (13.27) 215.90
assets
(e} Deferred tax assets 0.00 1,672.98 1,672.98 0.00 1,950.93 1,950.93
{net}
{f} Other non-current b,c 0.co 46.93 46,93 6.75) 54.31 47.56
assels
{g) Non-current (tax) d 391.34 (246.72) 144,62 500.34 (246.72) 253,62
assets
Total nen-current; 4,100,76 1,472.64 5,573.40 5,205.67 1,744,70 6,950.37
assets
{2) Current Assets
{a} Inventories e 9,650.15 1,214.98 10,865,113 10,726.50 1,347.14 12,073.64
{b) Financial assets
(i) Investment T - - - 34,07 {0.05) 34.02
(i} Trade receivables g 4,114.81 {1,565.03) 2,549.78 3,502.93 (2,550.81) 952,12
(ii#) Cash and cash 564.85 - 564.85 3,857.31 - 3,852.31
equivalents
(iv) Bank balances 117.39 - 117.39 190.18 - 190.18
other than Cash and
Cash equivalents
{v) Other financial h 35,010.52 - 35,010.52 37,639.38 (0.67) 37,638.71
assets
{c) Other current 4,896,74 - 4,896.74 5,249.46 . 5,249.46
assets
Total current assets 54,354.46 (350,05) 54,004.41 61,199.82 {1,204,39) 5%,995.44
Total Assets 58,455.22 1,122.59 59,577,81 66,405.50 540.31 66,945.81
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(Amount in Rupees lacs)

April 1, 2016 March 31, 2017

Note Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind ASs Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind ASs
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
fa})  Equity  Share 3,787.08 - 3,287.08 5,976.51 - 5,976,51
capital
(b} Gther equity 12,080.70 2,272.07 14,352.77 22,067.85 1,710.3% 23,778.24
Total equity 15,367.78 2,272.07 17,63%.85 28,044.36 1,710.3% 29,754.75
Non-current liabilities
{a) Financial liahitities
(i} Borrowings i 4,292.16 (25.56) 4,266.60 3,792.18 (25.83} 3,766.35
(b} Provisions 30.80 - 30.80 34.10 - 34.10
{c) Deferred tax 1,123.92 (1,123.92) - 1,144.25 (1,144.25)
liability (net)
Total non-current 5,446,88 (1,149.48) 4,297.40 4,970,53 {1,170.08) 3,800.45
Habilities
(2} Current liabilities
{a) Financial liabilities
(7} Borrowings 8,194,79 8,194.79 6,121.89 - 6,121.89
(if} Trade payable 1,773.42 1,773.42 1,559.48 - 1,559.48
(ifi) Other financiat 16,335.08 16,335.08 14,719.36 - 14,719.36
liabilities
(b) Qther current 10,719.43 10,719.43 10,378,13 10,378.13
liabilities
{c) Provisions 6.57 - 6.57 6.37 6.37
{d) Curreat tax 611,27 - 611,27 605.38 605.38
liabilities (Net)
Total current 37,640.56 - 37,640.56 33,390.61 - 33,390,641
liabilities
Total equity and liabilities 58,455.22 1,122.59 59,577.81 66,405.50 540,31 66,945,81

*The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

C) Reconciliation of profit for the year ended March 31, 2017

{Amount in Rupees {(acs)

= lnidme]tak elafdd to above ftem

Note Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind ASs
Income
Revenue 2,325.43 - 2,325.43
Othet income 189.46 391 291.37
Total income 2,614.89 3.91% 2,618.80
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed {958.73) - {958.73)
Employee benefits expense 213.45 (2.04) 21141
Finance costs 589.98 9.53 599.51
Depreciation and amortization expenses 184.69 {132.15) 52.54
Other expenses 2,150.81 985.83 3,136.64
Total expenses 2,180.20 861.17 3,041.37
Loss from continuing operations before tax 434.69 (857,26) (422.57)
Current tax 109,13 . 109.13
Minimum alternate tax - - -
Deferred tax 20.33 (297,38} (277.05)
Total tax expense 129.46 {297.38} (167.92)
Loss for the year 305,23 1559.88) {254.65)
e, : py
5 ASS, AN
(Gther comprehénsive income /i NN
fiis'that wi o} be reclassified to profit or foss (net of tax) I~f . -4
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(Amount in Rupees lacs)

April 1, 2016 March 31, 2017

Note Previous GAAP* | Adjustments Ind ASs Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind ASs
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
() Equity Share 3,287.08 - 3,287.08 5,976.51 - 5,976.5%
capitat
(b) Other equity 12,080.70 2,272.07 14,352.77 22,067.85 1,710,39 23,778.24
Total equity 15,367.78 2,272.07 17,639.8% 28,044.26 1,710.39 29,754.75
Non-current lfabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i} Borrowings i 4,292,146 (25.56) 4,266.60 3,792.18 (25.83) 3,766.35
(b) Provisions 30.80 - 30.80 34,10 . 34,10
(c} Deferred tax 1,123.92 (1,123,92) - 1,144.25 {1,144.25)
liability (net)
Total nen-current 5,446.88 {1,149.48) 4,297.40 4,970.,53 (1,170.08) 3,800.45
fabilities
(2} Current liabilities
(a) Financiat liabitities
(i) Borrowings 8,194,79 - 8,194.79 6,121.89 - 6,121.89
(ii} Trade payable 1,773.42 - 1,773.42 1,559.48 - 1,559.48
(iii) Other financial 16,335.08 - 16,335.08 14,719.36 - 14,719.36
tiabilities
(b) Other current 10,719.43 - 10,719.43 10,378.13 - 10,378.13
tiabilities
(c} Provisions 6.57 - 6,57 6.37 - 6.37
(d) Current tax 611.27 - 611.27 605.38 - 605.38
tiabitities {Net)
Total current 37,640.56 . 37,640.56 33,390.61 - 13,390.61
liabilities
Total equity and liabilities 58,455.22 1,122.59 59,577.81 66,405.50 540.31 66,945,581

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to nd AS presentation requirements for the purpeses of this note.

€} Reconciliation of profit for the year ended March 31, 2017
(Amount in Rupees lacs)

Note Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind ASs
Income
Revenue 2,325.43 - 2,325.43
Other income 289.46 ER] 193.37
Total income 2,614.89 3.9 2,618.80
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed (958.73) - (958.73)
Employee banefits expense 2i3.45 (2.04) 211.41
Finance costs 529.98 9.53 599.51
Depreciation and amortization expenses 184.69 {132.15) 52.54
QOther expenses 2,150.81 985.83 3,136.64
Total expenses 2,180.20 861.17 3,041.37
Loss from continuing operations before tax 434,69 {B57.26) (422.57)
Current tax 109.13 . 109.13
Minimum alternate tax - - -
Deferred tax 2033 (297.38) (277.05)
Total tax expense . 129.46 (297.38) (167.92)
Loss for the year 305.23 (559.88) (254.65)
AT OP
B ASSS LM A
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Other comprehensive income for the year net of tax

(1.8%)

(1.81)

Total comprehensive income for the year

305.23

(561.69)

(256.46)

* The previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this note.

D} Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2017 and April 1, 2016

{Amount in Rupees lacs}

Note March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016

Total equity (shareholder’s funds) as per previous GAAP 28,044.30 15,367.79
Adjustments:
Opening Ind AS adjustments 2,272.07 -
Investments written off a (0.55)
Recognition of financiat assets at fair value- Security deposit b 0.25) -
Recognition of financial assets at fair value- financial guarantee receivable c (5.64) 46,93
Trade receivable g {985.78) {1,565.03)
Inventories e 132,15 1,214.98
Recognition of financial liability at fair value-Borrowings i 0.27 25.55
{nvestment in mutual funds f (0.05} -
Employee advances H] (0.67} -
Deferred tax impact of above adjustments 298.28 2,796.91
Advance tax assets d - (246.72)
Total adjustments 1,710,318 2,272.67
Total equity as per nd AS 29,754.68 17,639,836
E} Reconciliation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note March 31, 2017
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 305.14
Adjustments:
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans recognised in Other comprehensive income (net of tax) (1.81}
Remesurement of financial assets at fair value 132.15
Recognition of financial assets at fair vatue (982.19)
Unwinding of financial liabilities at amoertized cost 0.27
Unwinding of financial assets at amortised cost (10.20)
Deferred tax impact of above adjustments 298.28
Total adjustinents {563.50}
Profit after tax as per Ind AS {258.36)
Other comprehensive income (net of tax);
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plans 1.81
Total comprehensive inceme as per Ind AS (256,55)
impact of Ind AS adoption on the statements of cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2017

Notes to first- Previous GAAP* Adjustments Ind AS
time adoption

Met cash flow from operating activities j (1,760.76) (5,142.52}) (6,903,28)
Net cash fiow from investing activities } (4,093,65) 5,130.84 1,037.1%
Net cash flow from financing activities } 9,219.66 {6t.11} 9,158.55
Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 3,365,25 (72.79) 3,292.46
Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 2016 682.24 1117.3%) 564,85
Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 2017 4,047.49 (190.18) 3,857.31

Notes to first-time adoption;

(a} Financial assets - investment in equity shares

In the financial year 2040-11, the Company had disposed off equity shares amounting INR 0.55 tacs. However, it continnued to carry such equity shares in its
books of account. Recognising the same as an error the Company has written off investment and accordingly as at April 1, 2016 the carrying value of
investments have been decreased by corrosponding decrease in the opaning reserve of the Company.

{b) Financtal assets - Security deposit

Under previous GAAP, interest free security deposits {that are refundable in cash on completion of the term) are recorded at their transaction value. Under ind
AS, all financiat assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair vatued these security deposits using the Effective interest
Rate (EIR}. The diffrence between the fair vaue and transaction value at the time of intial recognition has been recognised as prepaid rent. In the subsequent
years, Lhe fair value of security deposits have been increased by recognition of corresponding interest income applying the EIR and prepaid rent has been
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{¢) Financial guarantee contracts
Under Indian GAAP, there is no guidance and requiresnent to record personal guarantee given against loans taken from financial instituions by directors till the
same is not invohked.

However, under Ind AS, financial guarantee contracts which requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder of that guarantee for a toss
it incurres because a specified debtor fails to make payment shall be recorded at fair vatue.

The Company i3 a party to financial guarantee coatracts as its directors has given guarantee against certain borrowings taken by it. The effect of the
adjustments resulted in recogniticn of deemed capital contribution by directors along with corresponding recognition an asset namely financial guarantee
receivable on transition date.

ins the subsequent years, the fair value of financial guarantee receivable has been decreased by recognition of corresponding finance cost in the statement of
profit and loss,

{d) Tax adjustments related to earlier years

The Company has evaluated recoverability of advance tax assets which are outsttanding for more than six years. On the basis of such evaluation the Company
has written off the said advance tax assels on account of uncertainity regarding their recoverability.

{e) Inventories

In the previous years the Company had amortised inventory over its useful lives. Recognising the same as GAAP error the Company has reversed such
amortisation on inventories retroactively, Accordingly as at April 1, 2016 the casrying value of inventories have been increased by accumulated depreciation
along with correspending increase in the opening reserve of the Company. Further the Company has discontinued depreciation inventery in the subsequent
years,

{f) Investment in mutual funds

In the previous years the Company had recorded investment in mutual funds at cost. Recognising the same as GAAP error the Company has recoerded such
mutual funds at fair market value,

(g) Trade receivable

Under the previous GAAP, provision for doubful debts are recognised when loss event indicators are visible. However, as per Ind AS 109, the Company is
required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the atlowance for doubtful debks. Expected credit losses are defined as the difference between
the contractual cash folwo due to the Company and cash flow that the Company expect to receive. As a resuit, the altowances for doubtful debts are
recognised in the books of account with a correspanding decrease in retained earnings/trade receivables.

(h} Interest Free Loan/Loan given on concessional rate of interest

Under previous GAAP, interest free loan (that are repaid by the employees as per the terms of respective loan agreements) are recorded at their transaction
value. Under ind AS, such loans being financial assets are required to be recognised at fair value. Accordingly the Company has fair valued these loans using
Effective Interest Rate (EIR). The difference hetween the fair value and transaction value at the time of initial recognition has been charged to statement of
profit & toss/ apening reserves, as the case may be. In the subsequent years, the fair value of such assets have been increased by recognition of corresponding
interest income applying the EiR.

{i) Financial liabilities- barrowings
Under Indian GAAP, liabilities pertaining to kong term borrowings received from banks/financial institutions are recorded at cost,

However, under Ingd AS, liabilities in which the Company has a contractual obligation to deliver cash are classified as financial liabilities and recorded at
amortized cost. The Company amortises upfront loan processing and finance charges over the expected life of the respective borrowings as required by INd AS
109. The upfront benefit on transition date due to the discounting has been adjusted against the retained earnings. Further, interest cost an unwinding of
discount has keen charged off to the statement of profit or loss.

{j} Re-measurement of employee benefits :

Both under Indian GAAP and Ind-AS, the company recognised costs related to its post-employment defined benefit pian on an actuariat basis. Under Indian
GAAP, the entire cost, including actuarial gains and losses, are charged to the statement of profit or loss. However, Under lnd-AS, remeasurements [comprising
of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liabitity and the return on
plan assets excluding ameounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit tiability] are recogrised in Other Comprehensive Income.
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{g) Deferred taxes
The above changes increased (decreased) the deferred tax tiability as follows based on a tax rates of 33.063 per cent and 33.063 per cent for the financial year
March 31, 2646 and March 31, 2017 respectively:

tndian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statemnent approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits and accounting
profits for the period. ind-AS 12 “income Taxes” requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary
differences batween the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind-AS 12 approach has resulted in
recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

The above changes result into increased/{decreased} the deferred tax assets as follows:

Note April 1, 2016  |March 31, 2017
impact of change in temporary differences between carring amount and tax 2,820.87 3,145.64
base of assets
Impact of change in temporary differences betwaen carring amount and tax (23.94) (50.46}
base of liability
2,796.91 3,095,18

{h) Retained earnings
Retained earnings as at April 1, 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition adjustments.

(1) Other comprehensive income

Under Indian GAAP, the Company has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI) separately. ltems that have been reclassified from statement of profit
and loss to other comprehensive income includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans (net of tax). Hence, Indian GAAP profit or loss is recanciled to total
comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

{j} Statement of cash flews
Thie transition (rom Indian GAAP to Ind AS has not had a material impact on the statement of cash flows.

These financial statemnents were alitherized for issue by Board of Directors on September 4, 2018,

The Company has reclassified/regrouped previous year figures where necessary to conform to the current year’s classification.

As per our report of even date
For and on behalf of Board of Birectors of
MGF Developments Limited

Rakshit Jain
Director & CEQ
DIN : 00607288
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